
  
 

TENTATIVE AGENDA & MEETING NOTICE 
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 7, 2012 
8:00 A.M. 

WATAUGA COUNTY ADMINISTRATION BUILDING 
COMMISSIONERS' BOARD ROOM 

 
TIME # TOPIC PRESENTER PAGE 

     

8:00 1  CALL REGULAR MEETING TO ORDER   
 2  APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 

January 17, 2012, Regular Meeting 
January 17, 2012, Closed Session 
January 27, 2012, Special Meeting 

 1 

 3  APPROVAL OF THE FEBRUARY 7, 2012 AGENDA  17 
8:05 4  PROPOSED INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT FOR APPALACHIAN 

REGIONAL LIBRARY 
MS. MOLLY 
WESTMORELAND 

19 

8:10 5  PROPOSED PROCLAMATION DESIGNATING FEBRUARY 2012 
AS SPAY/NEUTER MONTH 

WATAUGA HUMANE 
SOCIETY REPRESENTATIVE  

29 

8:15 6  PRESENTATION OF SMOKY MOUNTAIN CENTER’S ANNUAL 
AUDITED FINANCIAL REPORT 

MS. MARGARET PIERCE 
MR. BRIAN INGRAHAM 
MS. SHELLY FOREMAN 

31 

8:20 7  REQUEST TO APPOINT THE HOME AND COMMUNITY CARE 
BLOCK GRANT (H&CCBG) ADVISORY COMMITTEE AND 
LEAD AGENCY  

MS. ANGIE BOITNOTTE 87 

8:25 8  MOWING CONTRACT BID AWARD REQUEST MR. ROBERT MARSH 91 
8:30 9  PLANNING AND INSPECTIONS MATTERS 

A. Proposed Language Assistance Plan for CDBG 
Scattered Site Housing Program 

B. Proposed 2012 Hazardous Materials Emergency 
Planning Grant Agreement 

C. Brookshire Wetlands Proposal 

MR. JOE FURMAN  
105 

 
119 

 
137 

8:35 10  TAX MATTERS 
A. Monthly Collections Report 
B. Refunds and Releases 

MR. KELVIN BYRD  
143 
145 

8:40 11  MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 
A. Proposed Resolution Supporting Road Improvements 

and Upgrades to Roby Greene Road (SR 1331B) 
B. Proposed Resolution Establishing the Register of 

Deeds Salary 
C.  Tentative Agenda for Annual Pre-Budget Retreat 
D.  Incident Command System Classes 
E. Boards & Commissions 
F. Announcements 

MR. DERON GEOUQUE  
167 

 
169 

 
173 
177 
179 
187 



Page 2 
Tuesday, February 7, 2012 

Tentative Agenda & Meeting Notice 
Board of County Commissioners 

 
 

TIME # TOPIC PRESENTER PAGE 
     

8:45 12  PUBLIC COMMENT  195 
9:45 13  BREAK  195 
9:50 14  CLOSED SESSION 

Attorney/Client Matters – G. S. 143-318.11(a)(3) 
 195 

10:00 15  ADJOURN   
  



AGENDA ITEM 2: 

APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES 
January 17, 2012, Regular Meeting 
January 17, 2012, Closed Session Meeting 
January 27, 2012, Special Meeting 
 
 
  

020712 BCC Meeting

1



MINUTES 
 
 

WATAUGA COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
TUESDAY, JANUARY 17, 2012 

 
 

The Watauga County Board of Commissioners held a regular meeting on Tuesday, 
January 17, 2012, at 5:30 P.M. in the Commissioners' Board Room of the Watauga County 
Administration Building, Boone, North Carolina. 
 
  PRESENT: Nathan A. Miller, Chairman 
    Vince Gable, Vice-Chairman 
    David Blust, Commissioner 
    Jim Deal, Commissioner 
    Stacy C. Eggers, IV, County Attorney 
    Deron Geouque, County Manager 
    Anita J. Fogle, Clerk to the Board 
 
Chairman Miller called the meeting to order at 5:31 P.M. 
 
[Clerk’s Note:  Commissioner Tim Futrelle was not in attendance due to family obligations.] 
 
Commissioner Blust opened the meeting with a prayer and Vice-Chairman Gable led the Pledge 
of Allegiance. 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

Chairman Miller called for additions and/or corrections to the December 20, 2011, regular and 
closed session minutes. 
 
Commissioner Blust, seconded by Commissioner Deal, moved to approve the December 20, 
2011, regular meeting minutes as presented. 
 

VOTE: Aye-4(Miller, Gable, Blust, Deal) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-1(Futrelle) 

 
Commissioner Blust, seconded by Commissioner Deal, moved to approve the December 20, 
2011, closed session minutes as presented. 
 

VOTE: Aye-4(Miller, Gable, Blust, Deal) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-1(Futrelle) 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

Chairman Miller called for additions and/or corrections to the January 17, 2012, agenda. 

DRAFT 
020712 BCC Meeting

2



 
Commissioner Blust, seconded by Vice-Chairman Gable, moved to approve the January 17, 
2012, agenda as presented. 
 

VOTE: Aye-4(Miller, Gable, Blust, Deal) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-1(Futrelle) 

SHERIFF’S OFFICE VEHICLE BID AWARD REQUEST 
Captain Kelly Redmon presented bids for three (3) new crew cab 4x4 pickup trucks.  The 
following bids were received: 
 

Bidder Amount Per Vehicle Total Amount 
Bobby Jones Ford $30,528 $91,584.00 
Light-n-up LLC $31,423 $94,269.00 
Boone Ford $31,728 $95,728.00 
Mack Brown Chevrolet $35,978 $107,936.01 

 
The lowest responsive bidder was Bobby Jones Ford with a total bid of $91,584.  The amount for 
taxes and tags was $2,766 for a total amount of $94,350.  The total budgeted amount for the 
vehicles was $90,000; however, the County had realized a savings in the purchase of radios, 
therefore, an administrative budget amendment was to be processed to cover the $4,350 overage.   
 
County Attorney Eggers explained that, per General Statutes, the Board was required to award 
the bid to the lowest responsive and responsible bidder.  No discretion was allowed to give 
special consideration to local bidders. 
 
Vice-Chairman Gable, seconded by Commissioner Blust, moved to award the bid for three new 
crew cab 4x4 pickup trucks to the lowest bidder, Bobby Jones Ford, in the total amount of 
$94,350 ($91,584 for the three vehicles and $2,766 for the associated taxes and tags). 
 

VOTE: Aye-4(Miller, Gable, Blust, Deal) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-1(Futrelle) 

USDA’S PROPOSED LEASE REQUEST FOR THE LOCATION OF THE WATAUGA/ 
AVERY COUNTY SERVICE CENTER 
Mr. Charles Zink, with the Farm Services Administration, presented a lease for office space at 
the West Annex which would house the Watauga/Avery County USDA Service Center.  The 
County, in conjunction with the USDA, had been working on this renewal for three (3) plus 
years.  The proposal was to continue leasing the 1,718 square feet currently occupied by USDA 
at the existing rate of $10.00 per square foot, for a total amount of $17,180 per year.  Lease 
payments were electronically deposited monthly.  The term of the lease was 10 years. 
 

020712 BCC Meeting

3



County Manager Geouque requested the County Attorney’s opinion as to if the lease could be for 
ten years.  County Attorney Eggers stated that he recalled that leases needed to be 10 years or 
less to meet statutory requirements; however, he noted that he would verify that information. 
 
Commissioner Deal, seconded by Vice-Chairman Gable, moved to approve the lease for USDA 
office space at the West Annex facility in the amount $10.00 per square foot for approximately 
1,718 square feet totaling $17,180 annually, contingent upon the County Attorney’s review and 
verification of the number of years allowed for the lease of County-owned property. 
 

VOTE: Aye-4(Miller, Gable, Blust, Deal) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-1(Futrelle) 

PRESENTATION OF W.A.M.Y. COMMUNITY ACTIONS, INC.’S, 2012-2013 
COMMUNITY SERVICES BLOCK GRANT (CSBG) APPLICATION 
Ms. Jane Lentz, Director of W.A.M.Y. Community Action, Inc., presented the Agency’s 2012-
2013 Community Services Block Grant (CSBG) application as required prior to submission. 
 
The report was given for information only; therefore, no action was required.   

GREEN VALLEY COMMUNITY PARK REQUEST 
Ms. Janice Carroll, President of Green Valley Community Park, Inc., stated that a grant was 
received in the amount of $5,300 for materials and gravel for repairs and improvements at the 
park.   Ms. Carroll requested County forces to haul the gravel to the park and grade the driveway 
and parking areas.  The County has assisted the park in the past with similar requests. 
 
Also, the County has an agreement with Green Valley Community Park which states that, should 
the park default or cease to exist; the property would revert to the County.   
 
Commissioner Deal, seconded by Vice-Chairman Gable, moved to authorize the County 
Manager, through appropriate staff, to assist the Green Valley Community Park with hauling and 
grading. 
 

VOTE: Aye-4(Miller, Gable, Blust, Deal) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-1(Futrelle) 

 
[Clerk’s Note:  Tourism Development Authority Matters was heard prior to the public hearing as the public hearing 
was not scheduled to begin until 6:00 P.M.] 
 
 

020712 BCC Meeting

4



TOURISM DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY MATTERS 

A.  Bid Award Requests for Rocky Knob Park 

1.  Bike Skills Area 
 
Mr. Eric Woolridge with the Watauga County Tourism Development Authority (TDA), 
requested approval to contract with Trail Dynamics, in an amount not to exceed $35,000, for the 
construction of a bike skills area at Rocky Knob Park.  The bike skills area is part of the match 
for the $500,000 Parks and Recreation Trust Fund (PARTF) grant awarded for Rocky Knob 
Park.  The TDA Board approved the award at their January 10, 2012, meeting.   
 
County Attorney Eggers stated that the TDA used the Request for Proposal (RFP) method of 
choosing a qualified company for the construction of the bike skills area which allows for the 
negotiation of the contract upon selection.  
 
Commissioner Deal, seconded by Vice-Chairman Gable, moved to authorize Watauga County 
Tourism Development staff and the County Attorney to negotiate a contract with Trail Dynamics 
for an amount not to exceed $35,000, with the Tourism Development Authority to fully fund the 
project at no cost to Watauga County. 
 
After further discussion, Chairman Miller tabled the above motion and Commissioner Deal, 
seconded by Commissioner Blust, moved to authorize Watauga County Tourism Development 
staff and the County Attorney to negotiate a contract with Trail Dynamics for an amount not to 
exceed $35,000, with the Tourism Development Authority to fully fund the project at no cost to 
Watauga County contingent, upon the contract being brought to the Board of Commissioners for 
final approval. 
 

VOTE: Aye-4(Miller, Gable, Blust, Deal) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-1(Futrelle) 

 
2.  Playground 
 
Mr. Woolridge stated that, upon a request for bids for the construction of a playground at Rocky 
Knob Park, Beanstalk Journeys was the only bid received.  Mr. Woolridge stated that, at a prior 
Board of Commissioners meeting, the Board requested the project be rebid due to concerns with 
the original Request for Proposal.  With assistance from the County Attorney, TDA staff rebid 
the project.  Beanstalk Journeys was the only vendor to submit a proposal due to the desire to use 
natural materials. 
 
The Tourism Development Authority Board approved Beanstalk Journeys’ proposal and 
contract, which was drawn by the County Attorney, in the amount of $75,000.  The playground 
was another component of the County fulfilling the Parks and Recreation Trust Fund (PARTF) 
grant requirements for Rocky Knob Park. 
 
 

020712 BCC Meeting

5



Commissioner Deal, seconded by Commissioner Blust, moved to approve the contract with 
Beanstalk Journeys in the amount of $75,000 for the construction of a playground at Rocky 
Knob Park with the project to be fully funded by the Watauga County Tourism Development 
Authority. 
 

VOTE: Aye-4(Miller, Gable, Blust, Deal) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-1(Futrelle) 

B.  Recreation Trails Program Grant Application Request 

Mr. Woolridge presented a Recreation Trails Program grant application in the amount of $75,000 
with an $18,750 match that would be funded by the Watauga County Tourism Development 
Authority (TDA).  The grant, if received, was to fund a project that included the construction of 
two (2) river accesses:  one at Green Valley Community Park and the other off of Pine Run Road 
along the New River.  The property where the Pine Run Road access was to be constructed was 
owned by the North Carolina Department of Transportation (DOT) and, therefore, an 
encroachment agreement between the County and the DOT would be required prior to 
construction.  The TDA was to be the grant applicant and, therefore, responsible for all 
construction and maintenance costs associated with the project and encroachment.   
 
Mr. Woolridge requested the Board’s endorsement of the projects and grant application.  Also 
the TDA requested the County agree to enter into an encroachment agreement, contingent upon 
award of the grant, with the DOT for the property on which the Pine Run Road access was to be 
constructed. 
 
Mr. Woolridge stated that the TDA had scheduled a public hearing on Thursday, January 26, 
2012, to allow citizen comment on the proposed grant application. 
 
Commissioner Deal, seconded by Commissioner Blust, moved to endorse the project and grant 
application as presented by the Tourism Development Authority, subject to the TDA conducting 
the public hearing on Thursday, January 26, 2012, to allow for citizen comment on the proposed 
projects and grant application; the TDA Board notifying adjacent property owners and giving 
explanation at the public hearing of options to citizens who wished to oppose the grant 
application; and contingent upon the grant application not being submitted until after the public 
hearing was held. 
 

VOTE: Aye-2(Blust, Deal) 
 Nay-2(Miller, Gable) 
 Absent-1(Futrelle) 

 
The County Attorney verified that the motion did not pass. 
 
After further discussion, Chairman Miller set a special meeting on Friday, January 27, 2012, at 
8:00 A.M. and tabled further discussion and consideration of the grant application until that 
special meeting to allow the public to comment on the proposed projects at the scheduled public 
hearing prior to action being taken regarding the grant application. 

020712 BCC Meeting

6



PUBLIC HEARING TO ALLOW CITIZEN COMMENT ON THE NORTH CAROLINA 
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION’S SECONDARY ROAD IMPROVEMENTS 
PROGRAM FOR FY 2012 
Commissioner Deal, seconded by Commissioner Blust, moved to declare the public hearing open 
at 6:31 P.M. to allow for comment on the Department of Transportation’s (DOT) Secondary 
Roads Improvement Program for Fiscal Year 2012. 
 
Mr. Ivan Dishman, District Engineer with the DOT, reviewed the program for FY 2012 which 
included a total allocation of $703,951 for improvements to secondary roads in Watauga County 
as follows: 
 

I.  Paving Unpaved Roads                                                                                Programmed Paving Goal:  1.38 Miles 
Increase Funding 
Priority # State Rd. # Length (miles) Road Name & Description Est. Cost 

 SR 1156 .69 Big Branch Road (Complete Funding) 
From SR1123 to End of Maintenance $100,000 

Subtotal   $100,000 

Rural Paving Priority 
Priority # State Rd. # Length (miles) Road Name & Description Est. Cost 

1 SR1331B 1.38 Roby Greene Road (Partial Funding) from 
end of pavement to SR1332 $366,006 

Subtotal   $366,006 

Rural Paving Alternates 
In the event that any roads in priority have to be placed on the "Hold List" due to unavailable right of way or 
environmental review, or if additional funding becomes available, funds will be applied to the roads listed in priority 
order in the paving alternate list as follows: 
Priority # State Rd. # Length (miles) Road Name & Description Est. Cost 

3* SR1526B 2.3 Sampson Road from Point to Point $2,300,000 
4* SR1123C .8 Laurel Creek Road from 1157 to SR 1129 $850,000 

[Clerk’s Note:  *Mr. Dishman clarified that Priority #’s 3&4 should be #’s 2&3] 
II.  General Secondary Road    

A.   Unpaved Road Spot Improvements 
SR1348 SR1231 SR1207 SR1331 
SR1126 SR1300 SR1508 SR1128 
SR1239 SR1559 SR1335 SR1211 
SR1204 SR1558 SR1353 SR1526 
SR1514 SR1660 SR1102 Etc. 

Subtotal   $117, 945
 

B.  Other Paved and Unpaved Road Improvements 
 Maintenance functions on various roads as needed.  Functions may include spot 

stabilization, paved road improvements, replacement of small bridges with pipes, 
safety projects, etc. 

 

Subtotal    $30,000 

III. Unallocated Funds and Reserves  
 Funds reserved for surveying, right-of-way acquisition, road additions, contingencies, 

overdrafts, and paving entrances to certified fire departments, rescue squads, etc.  

Subtotal    $90.000 

Grand Total  $703,951 
 

020712 BCC Meeting

7



The following citizens shared their concerns regarding Roby Greene Road (13 citizens) and 
Laurel Creek Road (2 citizens): 
 

Ross Garulski 
Mike Evans 
Tom Cherry 
Jennifer Critcher 

Pat Carter 
Lori McCarthy 
Anita Presnell 
Charlie Wallin 

Greg Tague 
Mario Perret-Gentil 
Krista Schneider 
Danny Schneider 

Joan Woodworth 
Jim Montague 
Janice Carroll 
 

 

There being no further public comment, Chairman Miller declared the public hearing closed at 
7:24 P.M. 
 
Statutes allow the Board of Commissioners to either endorse the plan or take no action at all; 
however, the Board has no control over the operation of the plan. 
 
After discussion, Vice-Chairman Gable, seconded by Commissioner Deal, moved to endorse the 
Department of Transportation’s Secondary Roads Improvement Plan as presented. 
 

VOTE: Aye-4(Miller, Blust, Deal, Gable) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-1(Futrelle) 

 
By consensus, the Board agreed to direct the County Manager to draft a resolution requesting the 
Department of Transportation give consideration to Roby Greene Road for safety reasons and to 
follow up with DOT staff regarding potential discretionary funds that might be available to assist 
with the repairs. 

LANDFILL GAS TO ENERGY PROJECT MATTERS 

A.  Proposed Interconnection Agreement with BREMCO 

Mr. Brian Crutchfield, with Blue Ridge Electric Membership Corporation (BREMCO), 
presented an interconnection agreement between the County and BREMCO.  The 
interconnection agreement was a part of the County’s Gas to Energy project and was required in 
order for the County to place electricity generated through the project onto BREMCO’s electric 
infrastructure. 
 
Commissioner Deal, seconded by Commissioner Blust, moved to approve the interconnection 
agreement with BREMCO, contingent upon the County Attorney’s review.  
 

VOTE: Aye-4(Miller, Blust, Deal, Gable) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-1(Futrelle) 

B.  Proposed Facilities Charge Agreement 

Mr. Crutchfield also presented a Consumer Requested Facilities Charge Agreement between the 
County and BREMCO.  The purpose of the agreement was to cover the cost of the facilities 
constructed by BREMCO in support of the Gas to Energy project.  BREMCO had installed 

020712 BCC Meeting

8



primary metering at a single point, eliminating the seven existing meters and permitted the 
County to utilize the mini grid while BREMCO still maintained the facilities.  This agreement 
established a permanent consumer requested facilities charge in the total amount of $200 per 
month as long as the service was being provided. 
 
Commissioner Blust, seconded by Commissioner Deal, moved to approve the Consumer 
Requested Facilities Charge Agreement, contingent upon the County Attorney’s review. 
 

VOTE: Aye-4(Miller, Blust, Deal, Gable) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-1(Futrelle) 

C.  Proposed Baseline Gas Monitoring  

Mr. Brian Raichle with the Appalachian State University’s Department of Technology and 
Environmental Design requested permission to install up to three (3) wellhead monitors to record 
landfill gas flow, temperature, and humidity in real time.  Mr. Raichle stated that the goal for the 
monitoring program was to improve energy production.  The baseline data collected also had the 
potential to strengthen future proposals for external funding.  Mr. Raichle stated that McGee 
Environmental, Inc., currently involved with the County’s project, was to be involved and 
provide input on the design of the monitors.  Appalachian State University was to provide all the 
necessary equipment and funds for the monitoring project at no cost to the County.  County 
Attorney Eggers inquired about preparing a formal agreement; however, he was not directed to 
do so. 
 
Commissioner Blust, seconded by Vice-Chairman Gable, moved to give permission to 
Appalachian State University’s Department of Technology and Environmental Design to install 
the wellhead monitors as presented. 
 

VOTE: Aye-4(Miller, Blust, Deal, Gable) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-1(Futrelle) 

PROPOSED GATED COMMUNITY ORDINANCE 
Mr. Joe Furman stated that the Fire Commission had requested an ordinance be drafted requiring 
rules and standards for the installation of electronic access gates for gated communities.  Mr. 
Furman presented a proposed Gated Community Ordinance and requested the Board schedule a 
public hearing for the February 21, 2012, meeting to allow public comment on the proposed 
ordinance.  Mr. Furman stated that the Ordinance was to regulate new communities and would 
also require current communities to adhere to the standards when replacing gates in the future.  
Mr. Furman stated that the Planning and Inspections Department was to serve as the gateway for 
applicants under the proposed ordinance. 
 

Mr. Ronnie Marsh with the Fire Commission stated that it would cost current communities 
approximately $1,200 to $1,500 when replacing current gates to meet the standards within the 
ordinance. 
 

020712 BCC Meeting

9



Vice-Chairman Gable, seconded by Commissioner Deal, moved to schedule a public hearing on 
Tuesday, February 21, 2012, at 6:00 P.M. to allow citizen comment on the proposed Gated 
Community Ordinance. 

VOTE: Aye-4(Miller, Blust, Deal, Gable) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-1(Futrelle) 

TAX MATTERS  

A. Monthly Collections Report 

Tax Administrator Kelvin Byrd presented the Tax Collections Report for the month of 
December 2011.  This report was presented for information only and, therefore, no action was 
required. 

B. Refunds and Releases 

Mr. Byrd presented the following Refunds and Releases for December 2011 for Board approval: 
 

TO BE TYPED IN MINUTE BOOK 
 

Vice-Chairman Gable, seconded by Commissioner Blust, moved to approve the Refunds and 
Releases Report for December 2011, as presented. 
 

VOTE: Aye-4(Miller, Gable, Blust, Deal) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-1(Futrelle) 

FINANCE MATTERS 

A.  Budget Amendments 

Ms. Margaret Pierce, Finance Director, reviewed the following budget amendments: 
 
Account # Description Debit Credit 
103586-384000 Donations – Project on Aging  $1,500
105550-429200 Program Supplies $1,500 
 
The amendment recognized a grant award from the Exxon Mobile Volunteer Foundation.  The 
Board approved the volunteer award program at the July 12, 2011, regular Board meeting. 
 

Account # Description Debit Credit 
143531-323000 Admin Cost Reimb from State  $139,621
145480-438800 Crisis Intervention Payments $139,621 
   
The amendment recognized an additional state DSS allocation for crisis intervention payments to 
clients.  No County funds were required in this program. 
  

  

020712 BCC Meeting

10



Account # Description Debit Credit 
103839-384000 Donations  $7,500
104330-454000 Capital Outlay – Vehicles $7,500 
   
The amendment recognized acceptance of a mass casualty trailer as a part of a regional grant 
program from Homeland Security. 
 

Commissioner Blust, seconded by Vice-Chairman Gable, moved to approve the budget 
amendments as presented. 
 

VOTE: Aye-4(Miller, Gable, Blust, Deal) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-1(Futrelle) 

B.  Records Retention Request 

Ms. Pierce stated that the Board previously approved a Document Scanning Policy allowing 
public records in the Finance Department to be retained electronically per approval from the 
North Carolina Department of Cultural Resources, Division of Historical Resources, 
Government Records Branch.  Due to interest from other County departments, Ms. Pierce 
presented a revised policy entitled Watauga County Electronic Records System Policy which was 
to allow for additional departments to use an electronic means of retaining records.  The revised 
draft had been sent to the North Carolina Department of Cultural Resources for their approval. 
 
Commissioner Blust, seconded by Vice-Chairman Gable, moved to approve the Watauga County 
Electronic Records System Policy as presented by Ms. Pierce. 
 

VOTE: Aye-4(Miller, Gable, Blust, Deal) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-1(Futrelle) 

 
Ms. Pierce presented Request for Disposal of Original Records Duplicated by Electronic Means 
forms from both the Finance and Social Services Departments as required in association with the 
Electronic Records System Policy. 
 
Commissioner Deal, seconded by Commissioner Blust, moved to approve the Request for 
Disposal of Original Records Duplicated by Electronic Means forms as presented by Ms. Pierce. 
 

VOTE: Aye-4(Miller, Gable, Blust, Deal) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-1(Futrelle) 

 
Ms. Pierce presented Records Retention and Disposition Schedules for both the Sheriff’s Office 
and Tax Department which had been updated by the North Carolina Department of Cultural 
Resources for consideration. 
 
 

020712 BCC Meeting

11



Commissioner Blust, seconded by Commissioner Deal, moved to adopt the Records Retention 
and Disposition Schedules for both the Sheriff and Tax Office as presented by Ms. Pierce. 
 

VOTE: Aye-4(Miller, Gable, Blust, Deal) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-1(Futrelle) 

UPDATE ON CONSOLIDATED DISPATCH 
Vice-Chairman Gable reported that Blowing Rock Town Council had adopted a resolution in 
support of consolidated dispatch; however, the Town of Boone had not yet made a commitment.  
Mr. Gable stated that a job description for an Emergency Services Director had been formulated 
and staff was working on a departmental budget.  At this time, it appears that costs savings 
would be seen and safety issues would be met. 
 
Vice-Chairman Gable moved to ratify the job description and publish a job advertisement in a 
move to have the department operable for FY 2013 which was to begin July 1, 2012. 
 
County Attorney Eggers stated that the job description needed to include that the Emergency 
Services Director reports directly to either the Sheriff or the County Manager in order for the 
County to qualify to receive 911 funding. 
 
County Manager Geouque stated that consolidated dispatch was also a topic for discussion on the 
draft agenda for the upcoming Annual Pre-Budget Retreat. 
 
After discussion, Vice-Chairman Gable’s motion died for a lack of a second to allow for the 
development of a departmental budget and further discussion at the Annual Pre-Budget Retreat.    

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 

A.  Request to Donate Bleachers from Old High School 

Commissioner Deal stated that the Optimist Club had contacted him inquiring about the County 
possibly donating the bleachers from the old high school to the Optimist Club for use at the 
baseball fields leased by the County. 
 
County Attorney Eggers stated that a resolution needed to be adopted to donate property to a 
non-profit and the donation would have to be advertised for five days; therefore, the Optimist 
Club would have to be an incorporated nonprofit agency in order to receive a donation of 
property from the County. 
 
Vice-Chairman Gable, seconded by Commissioner Blust, moved to declare the bleachers at the 
old high school as surplus property and direct the County Manager to follow up with the 
Optimist Club and prepare an appropriate resolution and advertisement to meet the requirements 
for the donation. 

VOTE: Aye-4(Miller, Gable, Blust, Deal) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-1(Futrelle) 

020712 BCC Meeting

12



B.  Boards & Commissions 

County Manager Geouque stated that the term of Watauga County Recreation Commission 
member, Mr. Denny Norris, representing the Green Valley Elementary School district, expired 
December 31, 2011.  Green Valley Principal, Phillip Griffin, had recommended the 
reappointment of Mr. Denny Norris. 
 
Commissioner Deal, seconded by Vice-Chairman Gable, moved to waive the second reading and 
reappoint Mr. Denny Norris to the Watauga County Recreation Commission. 
 

VOTE: Aye-4(Miller, Gable, Blust, Deal) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-1(Futrelle) 

 
County Manager Geouque stated that two terms on the Watauga County Tourism Development 
Authority (TDA) were set to expire at the end of February 2012.  The TDA requested that Mr. 
Rob Holton and Mr. Mike Hall each be reappointed to three-year terms.  Both Mr. Holton and 
Mr. Hall were willing to continue to serve if so appointed. 
 
The County Manager stated that, per TDA Bylaws, the TDA Chairman was also due for 
appointment by the Board of Commissioners. 
 
The above was a first reading and, therefore, no action was required at this time. 
 
County Manager Geouque stated that the term of Watauga County Nursing Home Community 
Advisory Committee (NHCAC) member, Mr. Fred Badders, was to expire January 24, 2012.  
High Country Council of Governments’ Ombudsman, Ms. Julie Wiggins, had nominated Mr. 
Badders for reappointment.  Mr. Badders was willing to continue to serve if so appointed. 
 
Commissioner Blust, seconded by Commissioner Deal, moved to waive the second reading and 
reappoint Mr. Fred Badders to the Watauga County Nursing Home Community Advisory 
Committee. 
 

VOTE: Aye-4(Miller, Gable, Blust, Deal) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-1(Futrelle) 

 

C.  Announcements 

County Manager Geouque announced that the North Carolina Association of County 
Commissioners had a seminar scheduled at the UNC School of Government’s Knapp-Sanders 
Building on January 20, 2012, entitled “Leading Your County Governing Board.” 
 
County Manager Geouque announced that the proposed dates for the Annual Pre-Budget Retreat 
were February 24 & 25, 2012, and March 2 & 3, 2012, with times proposed as 12:00–6:00 P.M. 
on Friday and 9:00 A.M.–12:00 P.M. on Saturday.  The County Manager requested direction in 
setting the date of the Retreat. 

020712 BCC Meeting

13



 
By consensus, the Board scheduled the Annual Pre-Budget Retreat for Friday, February 24, 
2012, from 12:00 noon until 6:00 P.M. and Saturday, February 25, 2012, from 9:00 A.M. until 
12:00 noon. 
 
County Manager Geouque announced that the 2012 Watauga County Economic Development 
Summit was scheduled for Wednesday, March 7, 2012, from 1:00–5:00 P.M. at the Blowing 
Rock Art and History Museum in Downtown Blowing Rock. 
 
County Manager Geouque announced that Watauga County Library invited the Board of 
Commissioners to a dinner from 4:00 P.M. to 5:00 P.M. on February 21, 2012, at the Library. 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
There was no public comment. 

CLOSED SESSION 
At 8:03 P.M., Commissioner Deal, seconded by Commissioner Blust, moved to enter Closed 
Session to discuss Attorney/Client Matters, per G. S. 143-318.11(a)(3). 
 

VOTE: Aye-4(Miller, Gable, Blust, Deal) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-1(Futrelle) 

 
Vice-Chairman Gable, seconded by Commissioner Blust, moved to resume the open meeting at 
8:56 P.M. 
 

VOTE: Aye-4(Miller, Gable, Blust, Deal) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-1(Futrelle) 

ADJOURN 
Chairman Miller adjourned the meeting at 8:56 P.M. 
 
 
 
       ________________________________ 
       Nathan A. Miller, Chairman 
ATTEST: 
 
____________________________ 
Anita J. Fogle, Clerk to the Board 
 

020712 BCC Meeting

14



MINUTES 
 
 

WATAUGA COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
FRIDAY, JANUARY 27, 2012 

SPECIAL MEETING 
 
 

The Watauga County Board of Commissioners held a special meeting on Friday, 
January 27, 2012, at 8:00 A.M. in the Commissioners' Board Room of the Watauga County 
Administration Building, Boone, North Carolina. 
 
  PRESENT: Nathan A. Miller, Chairman 
    David Blust, Commissioner 
    Jim Deal, Commissioner 
    Austin Eggers, County Attorney 
    Deron Geouque, County Manager 
    Anita J. Fogle, Clerk to the Board 
 
Chairman Miller called the meeting to order at 8:05 A.M. 
 
[Clerk’s Note:  Vice-Chairman Gable and Commissioner Futrelle were not in attendance due to prior 
commitments.] 
 
Commissioner Deal opened the meeting with a prayer and Commissioner Blust led the Pledge of 
Allegiance. 

TOURISM DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY RECREATION TRAILS PROGRAM GRANT 
APPLICATION ENDORSEMENT REQUEST 
Chairman Miller stated that the purpose of the special meeting was to consider endorsement of a 
Watauga County Tourism Development Authority (TDA) grant application which was originally 
presented to the Board of Commissioners at the January 17, 2012, regular meeting.  
Consideration was tabled at that time to allow for a public hearing scheduled by the Tourism 
Development Authority on Thursday, January 26, 2012, at 5:30 P.M. 
 
Mr. Eric Woolridge with the TDA gave an overview of the information provided at the public 
hearing regarding the Recreation Trails Program grant application in the amount of $75,000 with 
an $18,750 match proposed to be funded by the TDA.  The grant, if received, was to fund a 
project that included the construction of two (2) river paddle accesses:  one at Green Valley 
Community Park and the other off of Pine Run Road along the New River.  The grant application 
was due January 31, 2012, with awards to be announced in the spring.  If awarded, contracts for 
construction would be considered in the fall of 2012.  Mr. Woolridge stated that the TDA 
planned to continue to work with affected property owners during the current engineering phase 
of the project. 
 

DRAFT 

020712 BCC Meeting

15



Mr. Rob Holton, TDA Chairman, stated that a permitting process for commercial outfitters using 
the paddle access areas may be considered to allow oversight of parking and to avoid potential 
issues such as responsibility for trash pick-up. 
 
Mr. Wright Tilley, TDA Executive Director, stated that out of the approximate 50 attendees, 21 
citizens spoke at the public hearing, 4 of which were property owners.  The 4 property owners 
each had concerns; however, none indicated that they were totally against the project.  Several 
agencies also showed representation at the public hearing, including Watauga County Pathways, 
Green Valley Community Park, Boone TDA, commercial outfitters, and the Towns of Boone and 
Blowing Rock.  Mr. Tilley stated that overall support was expressed for the project. 
 
Commissioner Deal, seconded by Commissioner Blust, moved to endorse the Watauga County 
Tourism Development Authority’s Recreation Trails Program grant application in the amount of 
$75,000 with an $18,750 match to be funded by the Watauga County Tourism Development 
Authority (TDA) including the projects proposed to be funded by the grant. 
 

VOTE: Aye-3(Miller, Blust, Deal) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-2(Gable, Futrelle) 

 
Commissioner Deal also shared support for the Tourism Development Authority’s continued 
work with property owners located near the project. 

ADJOURN 
Chairman Miller, seconded by Commissioner Blust, moved to adjourn the meeting at 8:19 A.M. 
 
 
 
       ________________________________ 
       Nathan A. Miller, Chairman 
ATTEST: 
 
____________________________ 
Anita J. Fogle, Clerk to the Board 
 

020712 BCC Meeting

16



AGENDA ITEM 3: 

APPROVAL OF THE FEBRUARY 7, 2012, AGENDA 
 

 
  

020712 BCC Meeting

17



Blank Page 
 
 
  

020712 BCC Meeting

18



AGENDA ITEM 4: 

PROPOSED INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT FOR APPALACHIAN REGIONAL LIBRARY 

 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Ms. Molly Westmoreland, Appalachian Regional Library, will present a revised Interlocal 
Agreement with the County.  The agreement has been vetted by the County Managers and 
Attorneys of Ashe, Watauga and Wilkes.  The Governance Committee of the Appalachian 
Regional Library Board recommends the draft be submitted to the Board for approval. 
 
Board action is requested to approve the agreement as presented.   
 
 
 
  

020712 BCC Meeting

19



12/29/20112 
 

COUNTIES OF ASHE, WATAUGA, AND WILKES, NORTH CAROLINA 

INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT  

FOR THE APPALACHIAN REGIONAL LIBRARY SYSTEM  

THIS INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT FOR THE APPALACHIAN REGIONAL 
LIBRARY SYSTEM, (hereinafter “Agreement”) is made and entered into effective as of that 
date set forth herein below, by and between the COUNTY OF ASHE, a body politic, party of 
the first part; the COUNTY OF WATAUGA, a body politic, party of the second part; and the 
COUNTY OF WILKES, a body politic, party of the third part; 
 

WITNESSETH: 
 

WHEREAS, the mission of the Appalachian Regional Library (ARL) is to be an integral 
part of the lives of the people in the three counties by promoting the power of knowledge, the joy 
of reading, and the spirit of imagination; supporting and encouraging life-long learning; and 
contributing significantly to the sense of community and the economic well-being of Ashe, 
Wilkes, and Watauga Counties; 
 

WHEREAS, recognizing the diverse communities served and the specific individual 
needs of their residents, three governments and their three libraries collaboratively are committed 
to the education, economic development, and quality-of-life contributions that libraries uniquely 
are able to provide and; 
 

WHEREAS, this collaboration provides for the most effective and efficient use of local 
resources for the benefit of their residents and; 

WHEREAS, this collaboration provides opportunities for service and resource 
allocations otherwise beyond the financial and service capacities of the individual governments 
and libraries; 

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties hereto, having previously entered into an agreement in 
1979 for the purposes set forth herein, and desiring to renew their commitment for the 
organization of the Appalachian Regional Library upon the terms set forth below, do hereby 
agree as follows: 

SECTION I.  Governments Involved 
 

The local governments constituting the parties to this Agreement, which are hereinafter referred 
to as the member counties, are: 

 
A. Ashe County 
B. Watauga County 
C. Wilkes County 

 

020712 BCC Meeting

20



12/29/20113 
 

SECTION II. Purpose Statement 
 

The purpose of this Agreement is to perpetuate excellent library and information services to the 
residents of the areas included within the jurisdiction of the member counties in compliance with 
NCGS §153A-270 and Chapter 160A, Article 20, Part 1. 
 
SECTION III.  Board of Trustees 
 

A. The Appalachian Regional Library Board (ARLB) shall be the governing body of the 
ARL. 

 
B. Membership 

 
1. The membership of the ARLB shall consist of twelve (12) members, four (4) 

each to be appointed by the Boards of County Commissioners of Ashe 
County, Watauga County, and Wilkes County upon the approval of this 
Agreement. 

 
2. Following initial appointments by the Boards of County Commissioners under 

paragraph 1 above, appointments thereafter shall be in August of each year 
with an effective date to be the annual meeting of the ARLB in September.   

 
3. In the initial appointments under paragraph 1 above, terms of one (1) to four 

(4) years will be used to achieve a staggering of terms.  Terms will be 
considered staggered when each year the terms of only three (3) members of 
the twelve (12) member board expire, one member from each of the member 
counties.  

 
4. Once staggering of terms has been achieved, each member county will appoint 

members for four (4) year terms.  Subject to paragraph 5 below, no individual 
will be appointed to more than two (2) consecutive terms. 

 
5. In case of a vacancy on the ARLB, the Board of County Commissioners of the 

member county for which the vacancy occurs shall appoint a new member to 
serve the remainder of the unexpired term.  ARLB members who are 
appointed to fill unexpired terms are eligible to be appointed for one (1) 
additional full term; provided, that if the new member is fulfilling an 
unexpired term for less than 24 months, that member is eligible to serve two 
(2) consecutive full terms.  All ARLB members shall serve until their 
successors have been appointed. 

 
 
 
 

 

020712 BCC Meeting

21



12/29/20114 
 

C. Powers and Duties delegated to the ARLB by the Counties of Ashe, Watauga, and  
Wilkes 
 

1. The ARLB shall be delegated the power to adopt such bylaws, rules, and 
regulations for its own guidance and for the government of the library as may 
be necessary and in conformity with law. 

 
2. The ARLB shall be delegated the power to adopt policies for the regional 

library system’s administration and operation. 
 

3. The ARLB shall be delegated the power to select, appoint, remove, determine 
salary and other terms of employment of a regional library director (the ARL 
Director), and delegate to that person executive powers.  The ARL Director 
shall: 

 
a. Have a valid North Carolina Public Librarian Certificate; and 

 
b. Be the chief executive and administrative officer of the ARL System 

and function in accordance with the approved policies and by-laws of 
the ARLB. 
 

4. The ARLB shall develop and approve an annual budget which shall: 
 

a. Be administered under the provisions of NCGS Chapter159 and be 
subject to an independent audit in that ARL is a local governmental 
agency pursuant to NCGS §159-7(10) with all state funds administered 
by the regional library and expended throughout the region as 
described in 07 NCAC 021.0202.   

 
b. Include the separate budgets of each member county library, with the 

understanding that funds appropriated by each separate member 
county will be spent for that county; it will include an agreed upon 
amount paid by each member county for the materials, salaries, and 
operating expenses which shall be sent to the ARL Finance Officer in 
monthly or quarterly payments as negotiated by the ARL Finance 
Officer and the member county; and  

 
c. Include a specified amount of funding for each library’s operating 

costs with gifts, special memorials, endowment and trust income, and 
appropriations for capital outlay earmarked for the designated purpose.   

020712 BCC Meeting

22



12/29/20115 
 

5. The ARLB shall be delegated the power to appoint a regional library 
finance officer (the ARL Finance Officer) who shall: 

 
a. Ensure expenditure of funds consistent with the budget adopted by the 

ARLB; 
 
b. Report directly to the ARL Director and the ARLB; and 
 
c. Attend and report at all meetings of the ARLB. 

 
6. The ARLB shall be delegated the power to assure compliance with all 

applicable State and Federal laws and eligibility for the receipt of State and 
Federal funds. 

 
7.  The ARLB shall be delegated the power to make recommendations to the 

member counties concerning the construction and improvement of the 
physical facilities of the libraries within the region; however, construction and 
maintenance of the physical facilities within each member county shall be the 
responsibility of that county unless the ARLB negotiates and approves a 
collaborative effort. 

 
8. The ARLB shall make regular reports related to services and operations to the 

governing body of each member county as conveyed by approved reports of 
the ARL Director. 

 
9. The ARLB shall obtain an annual independent audit of ARL accounts 

consistent with generally accepted accounting principles, and submit a copy of 
the audit to the State Library of North Carolina and to each member county. 

 
10. The ARLB, staff, employees, or other agents shall not have the authority to 

incur any debt, obligation, liability, or other expense, not otherwise provided 
for in its existing appropriations, which would purport to place any liability 
for such debt upon the member Counties without an express vote of approval 
from each of the member Counties Boards of Commissioners approving such 
indebtedness. 

 
 
 
 
 

020712 BCC Meeting

23



12/29/20116 
 

SECTION IV. Terms of Property Ownership 
 
A major benefit of regional cooperation is that scarce resources may be shared among the 
various county residents without wasteful duplication; however, certain ownership restrictions 
shall apply: 

 
A.  All buildings, grounds, facilities, furniture, equipment, books, materials, technology, 

resources, or other library assets owned or purchased by or for each member county 
or member county library shall be and remain the property of that county. 

 
B.  All buildings, grounds, facilities, furniture, equipment, books, materials, technology, 

resources, or other library assets owned or purchased jointly by two or more member 
counties or member county libraries and not otherwise provided for under subsection 
A above shall be and remain the joint property of said counties, or, in the case of real 
property, shall be owned by said counties as tenants in common.  The percentage 
ownership or interest of each county under this paragraph A shall be as they may 
agree upon at the time of purchase or assumption of ownership. 

 
C.  All furniture, equipment, books, materials, technology, resources or other library 

assets directly paid for or purchased with Regional or State funds and not owned or 
purchased by one or more of the member counties under subsection A or subsection B 
above shall be and remain the property of ARL.  No real property shall be owned by 
or titled in the name of ARL, but shall instead be governed by the provisions of either 
subsection A or subsection B above. 

 
SECTION V.  Insurance Coverage and Indemnification 
 

A. Insurance Coverage 
 

1. Each member county shall maintain insurance coverage for the building and 
grounds and other library facilities located within that county. 

 
2. ARL shall maintain insurance coverage for the contents of the buildings, the 

ARL Regional Office, and vehicles used to provide service. 
  

B.    Indemnification 
 

1. ARL shall, to the extent legally permissible, indemnify each person who may 
serve or who has served at any time as an officer, director, board member, or 
employee against all expenses and liabilities, including, without limitation, 
counsel fees, judgments, fines, excise taxes, penalties and settlement 
payments, reasonably incurred by or imposed upon such person in connection 
with any threatened, pending or completed action, suit or proceeding in which 
he or she may become involved by reason of his or her service in such 
capacity; provided that no indemnification shall be provided for any such 
person with respect to any matter as to which he or she shall have been finally 

020712 BCC Meeting

24



12/29/20117 
 

adjudicated in any proceeding not to have acted in good faith or in the 
reasonable belief that such action was in the best interests of the Appalachian 
Regional Library System; and further provided that any compromise or 
settlement payment shall be approved by a majority vote of a quorum of 
directors who are not at that time parties to the proceeding 

 
SECTION VI. Provisions for Amendment and Dispute Resolution 
 

A. This Agreement may be amended by instrument duly approved and executed by all of 
the member counties, subject to the requirements of this Section VI. 

 
B. Recommendations for amendments to this Agreement may be made by the ARLB or 

by any member county.  Such recommendations shall be forwarded to the governing 
body of each member county in writing with a minimum thirty (30) day period for 
consideration provided.  At any regular meeting of the governing body of each 
member county after expiration of said thirty (30) day period, the proposed 
amendments may be voted on by the governing body. 

 
C. Disagreements related to this Agreement shall be resolved first by a committee of 

representatives appointed by the governing body of each member county, with the 
assistance of their respective legal counsel if necessary.  Should resolution by this 
method be unsuccessful, the governing bodies of the member counties may authorize 
resolution by such means as they may deem appropriate. 

 
SECTION VII. Provisions for Withdrawal and Dissolution 

A. A member county proposing to withdraw from the ARL System shall give written 
notice on or before July 1 to the ARLB, the other member counties, and the State 
Library of North Carolina. The withdrawal shall be effective June 30 of the following 
calendar year. 

 
B. The withdrawing member county shall establish eligibility for grants to public 

libraries according to 07 NCAC 021.0201 on or before the effective date of 
withdrawal. 

C. Should the withdrawing member county, following its written notice of withdrawal 
under subsection A above and prior to the effective date thereof, decide to rescind 
said notice, it shall do so by written notice to the other member counties and the State 
Library of North Carolina, where upon it shall remain a part of the ARL System 
under all of the terms and conditions of this Agreement. 

 
D. Should that member fully withdraw, the Terms of Property Ownership as stated in  

Section IV shall apply. 
 
E. Unless the remaining member counties shall agree otherwise as set forth below, upon 

the withdrawal of only one member county this Agreement shall continue in full force 

020712 BCC Meeting

25



12/29/20118 
 

and effect as between the remaining two member counties and said remaining 
counties shall remain a part of the ARL System. 

 
F. The ARL System shall be dissolved if at least two of the member counties withdraw 

in accordance with the procedures stated above, or if all of the member counties then 
comprising the ARL System should so agree by instrument duly approved and 
executed by their respective governing boards, or in any event upon expiration of the 
term of this Agreement as set forth in Section IX below.  Any written instruction of 
dissolution entered into by the member counties may, but shall not be required to, 
include provisions for the resolution of outstanding debts and distribution of 
properties and resources, including appointment of a committee to accomplish the 
same as provided for in subsection H below.   

 
G. As included under NCGS Chapter160A, Article 20, Part 1, Joint Exercise of Power, 

property purchased by ARL is owned jointly as tenants in common by the 
participating counties; therefore, if the ARL System is dissolved, the counties of 
Ashe, Watauga, and Wilkes shall divide the joint assets equally, including all books, 
technology, or other resources paid for with ARL or state funds.  All buildings, 
grounds, and other facilities of each library shall remain the property of its respective 
county.  Library assets owned or purchased by a county, such as facilities, furniture, 
equipment, or materials shall remain the property of that county. 

  
H. The resolution of outstanding debts and the distribution of properties and resources 

jointly owned may be accomplished by a committee composed of representatives 
from each governmental unit, the current ARL Director, and a representative from the 
State Library of North Carolina. 

 
I. After all outstanding debts are resolved, any remaining funds from the member 

counties shall be returned to them and the distribution of any remaining State or 
Federal funds shall be determined by the State Library.    

 
SECTION VIII.  Effective Date 

 
This Agreement, in order to become effective, shall require the approval of the governing bodies 
of the member counties and shall become effective as of the date on which all said approvals are 
complete. 

 
SECTION IX. Term and Termination:  Review 

 
A. This Agreement shall, following the effective date hereof, continue to be in effect for 

a period of ten (10) years unless sooner terminated as set forth in Section VII above.  
The member counties may, either by amendment to this Agreement pursuant to 
Section VI above or by approval of a new interlocal agreement, extend the term 
hereof for such period as they may mutually agree upon. 

 

020712 BCC Meeting

26



12/29/20119 
 

B. Upon the expiration of the term of this Agreement under subsection A above, the 
member counties shall immediately proceed with dissolution under Section VII and, 
upon completion of the same, this Agreement shall be considered terminated. 
 

C. This Agreement may be reviewed at any time by any of the member counties or the 
ARLB and, if modifications are deemed reasonable and necessary, amendments may 
be made according to the procedures stated above. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement has been executed by the principal official 

of the governing body of each party hereto, pursuant to authority of each respective governing 
body. 

 

 

Attest: 

      ASHE COUNTY 

 

_______________________________ BY_____________________________________     
Clerk to the Board 

      Date:_____________________ 
 
      WATAUGA COUNTY 

 

___________________________________ BY_____________________________________ 
     Clerk to the Board 
      Date:______________________ 
 
       

WILKES COUNTY 
 
 
___________________________________ BY______________________________________ 
      Clerk to the Board    
      Date:_______________________ 

       

 

020712 BCC Meeting

27



Blank Page 
 
 

020712 BCC Meeting

28



AGENDA ITEM 5: 

PROPOSED PROCLAMATION DESIGNATING FEBRUARY 2012 AS SPAY/NEUTER 
MONTH 

 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
A representative with the Watauga Humane Society will present a request for the Board to 
declare February “Spay/Neuter Month”.  Staff seeks direction from the Board. 
  

020712 BCC Meeting

29



STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
 
COUNTY OF WATAUGA 
 
 

PROCLAMATION DESIGNATING FEBRUARY 2012 AS “SPAY/NEUTER MONTH” 
 

WHEREAS, pets provide companionship to more than 71,000,000 households in the 
United States; and 

 
WHEREAS, humane societies and animal shelters have to euthanize more than four 

million cats, dogs, rabbits and other animals each year, many of whom are healthy and 
adoptable, due to a lack of critical resources and public awareness; and 

 
WHEREAS, this tragic overpopulation of pets costs citizens and taxpayers of the County 

thousands of dollars annually through animal service programs aimed at coping with the 
thousands of homeless animals; and 

 
WHEREAS, spaying and neutering has been shown to dramatically reduce the 

overpopulation of pets and feral cats, proving to be a wise investment in saving animal lives and 
taxpayer dollars; and 

 
WHEREAS, veterinarians, national and local animal protection organizations, and private 

citizens worked together to ensure the spaying or neutering of more than 44,000 pets and feral 
cats through “Spay Day” in the United States in 2010; and 

 
WHEREAS, veterinarians, national and local animal protection organizations, and private 

citizens have joined together again to advocate the spaying and neutering of pets and feral cats 
on “Spay Day 2012.” 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT PROCLAIMED by the Watauga County Board of 

Commissioners, that February 2012 is designated “Spay/Neuter Month;” and 
 
BE IT FURTHER PROCLAIMED that the Watauga County Board of Commissioners 

encourage the people of Watauga County to observe this designation by having their own pets 
spayed or neutered or by sponsoring such for another person’s pet or a shelter animal awaiting 
adoption. 
 
 ADOPTED this the 7th day of February, 2012. 
 
 
       __________________________________ 
       Nathan A. Miller, Chairman 
ATTEST:      Watauga County Board of Commissioners   
  
____________________________     (SEAL)  
Anita J. Fogle, Clerk to the Board 

DRAFT 
020712 BCC Meeting

30



AGENDA ITEM 6: 

PRESENTATION OF SMOKY MOUNTAIN CENTER’S ANNUAL AUDITED FINANCIAL 
REPORT 
 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Ms. Margaret Pierce, Finance Director, will present the Smoky Mountain Center Annual Audited 
Financial Statements as required by Statute.  Brian Ingraham, CEO, and Shelly Foreman, 
Planning and Public Affairs Director, with Smoky Mountain will be present to answer any 
questions.  The report is included in your packet for review.   
 
No action is required. 
 
 
  

020712 BCC Meeting

31



020712 BCC Meeting

32



020712 BCC Meeting

33



020712 BCC Meeting

34



020712 BCC Meeting

35



020712 BCC Meeting

36



020712 BCC Meeting

37



020712 BCC Meeting

38



020712 BCC Meeting

39



020712 BCC Meeting

40



020712 BCC Meeting

41



020712 BCC Meeting

42



020712 BCC Meeting

43



020712 BCC Meeting

44



020712 BCC Meeting

45



020712 BCC Meeting

46



020712 BCC Meeting

47



020712 BCC Meeting

48



020712 BCC Meeting

49



020712 BCC Meeting

50



020712 BCC Meeting

51



020712 BCC Meeting

52



020712 BCC Meeting

53



020712 BCC Meeting

54



020712 BCC Meeting

55



020712 BCC Meeting

56



020712 BCC Meeting

57



020712 BCC Meeting

58



020712 BCC Meeting

59



020712 BCC Meeting

60



020712 BCC Meeting

61



020712 BCC Meeting

62



020712 BCC Meeting

63



020712 BCC Meeting

64



020712 BCC Meeting

65



020712 BCC Meeting

66



020712 BCC Meeting

67



020712 BCC Meeting

68



020712 BCC Meeting

69



020712 BCC Meeting

70



020712 BCC Meeting

71



020712 BCC Meeting

72



020712 BCC Meeting

73



020712 BCC Meeting

74



020712 BCC Meeting

75



020712 BCC Meeting

76



020712 BCC Meeting

77



020712 BCC Meeting

78



020712 BCC Meeting

79



020712 BCC Meeting

80



020712 BCC Meeting

81



020712 BCC Meeting

82



020712 BCC Meeting

83



020712 BCC Meeting

84



020712 BCC Meeting

85



020712 BCC Meeting

86



AGENDA ITEM 7: 

REQUEST TO APPOINT THE HOME & COMMUNITY CARE BLOCK GRANT 
ADVISORY COMMITTEE AND LEAD AGENCY 
 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Each year the Board is required to appoint a lead agency and advisory committee to make 
recommendations on how to best expend the County’s allocation from the Home and 
Community Care Block Grant (H&CCBG) funds.  These funds were previously established by 
the Older American’s Act and are administered by the North Carolina Division of Aging.   
 
Board action is requested to approve the Watauga County Project on Aging as the Lead Agency 
and the Advisory Board members as presented. 
 
 
  

020712 BCC Meeting

87



       Watauga County Project on Aging 
                  132 Poplar Grove Connector, Suite A ●  Boone, North Carolina 28607 
                                               Website:  www.wataugacounty.org/aging    angie.boitnotte@watgov.org 

        Telephone 828-265-8090   Fax 828-264-2060   TTY 1-800-735-2962     Voice 1-800-735-8262 or 711 
                                          

 
 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
 

TO: Deron Geouque, County Manager 
 

FROM: Angie Boitnotte, Director 
 

DATE: January 30, 2012 
 

SUBJ: Request for Board of Commissioners’ Consideration: Appointment of the Home and  
Community Care Block Grant Advisory Committee and Lead Agency 

 
 

Please accept the attached list as nominations for the Home and Community Care Block Grant 
Advisory Committee for FY 2013.  I also recommend that the Watauga County Project on 
Aging be appointed as the Lead Agency. 

 
 

020712 BCC Meeting

88



HOME AND COMMUNITY CARE BLOCK GRANT 
ADVISORY COMMITTEE FY2013 

 
 

LEAD AGENCY 
      
Angie Boitnotte, Director     Watauga County Project on Aging  
132 Poplar Grove Connector, Suite A   265-8090 
Boone, NC  28607      angie.boitnotte@watgov.org 
 
 
    

ADVISORY COMMITTEE 
 
NAME        REPRESENTING 
 
Tim Futrelle                             Watauga County Board of Commissioners 
576 Queen St.       773-9455 
Boone, NC  28607      tim.futrelle@watgov.org 
 
Anita Davie, Director       High Country Council of Governments 
Area Agency on Aging     265-5434 ext. 122 
468 New Market Blvd.     adavie@regiond.org 
Boone, NC  28607 
 
Jim Atkinson, Director     Watauga County Department of Social Services 
132 Poplar Grove Connector, Suite C   265-8100 
Boone, NC  28607      jim.atkinson@watgov.org 
 
Mike Birkmire, MS, CRC, Unit Manager   Independent Living 
245 Winklers Creek Rd., Suite A    265-5396 
Boone, NC 28607      mike.birkmire@dhhs.nc.gov 
 
Linda Bretz, RN      ARHCS Home Health 
PO Box 2528       266-1166 
Boone, NC  28607      lbretz@apprhs.org 
 
Murray Hawkinson, Watauga Clinical Site Director  Daymark Recovery Services 
132 Poplar Grove Connector, Suite B   264-8759 
Boone, NC  28607      mhawkinson@daymarkrecovery.org 
 
Margie Mansure, Family & Consumer Ed. Agent  Cooperative Extension 
971 West King St.       264-3061 
Boone, NC  28607      margie_mansure@ncsu.edu 
 
Christy Pruess, Northern Region Director   Smoky Mountain Center 
895 State Farm Rd., Suite 404    263-5637 
Boone, NC  28607      prueschr@smokymountaincenter.com 
 
Pam Rush, Public Health Nurse    Appalachian District Health Department 
126 Poplar Grove Connector     264-6635 
Boone, NC  28607      prush@apphealth.com  

020712 BCC Meeting

89



Sara Shoemaker, Medical Social Worker   Hospice 
136 Furman Road, Suite 2     265-3926 
Boone, NC  28607      sshoemaker@hchealth.net 
         
Pat Coley       Senior Citizen (STHL Delegate) 
P. O. Box 307       295-3556 
Blowing Rock, NC  28605     patcoley@bellsouth.net 
 
Becky Councill      Senior Citizen 
236 Brookside Drive      262-1348 
Boone, NC  28607       
 
Gail Hawkinson      Senior Citizen 
714 Queen St.       264-1774 
Boone, NC  28607      hawkmg@boone.net 
 
Dick Oehser       Senior Citizen 
145 Buff Ridge Road      265-2732 
Boone, NC  28607      dickoehser@charter.net 
 
Bob Parker       Senior Citizen 
P. O. Box 925       265-6390 
Blowing Rock, NC  28605     bobcat.p@hotmail.com 
 
Dr. Ed Rosenberg      Senior Citizen (STHL Alternate) 
220 Sorrento Forest Dr.     262-6146 (w) 
Blowing Rock, NC  28605     RosenbergE@appstate.edu 
 
Dr. Milton “Bunk” Spann     Senior Citizen 
920 Blairmont Dr.      264-4331 
Boone, NC  28607      bunkspann@bellsouth.net 
 
Betty Wyse       Senior Citizen 
314 Meadowview Dr., Apt. 401    264-5482 
Boone, NC  28607 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Updated:  01/30/12 

020712 BCC Meeting

90



AGENDA ITEM 8: 

MOWING CONTRACT BID AWARD REQUEST 
 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Mr. Robert Marsh will present a contract renewal with Estate Maintenance to extend the current 
rate of $77,000 for an additional two (2) year term.  Estate Maintenance was awarded the lowest 
bid in 2009 for contract mowing.  Over the past two and half years the service provided has been 
excellent with no complaints. 
 
Staff recommends the Board approve the contract renewal for $77,000 for an additional two (2) 
year period from July 1, 2012 and direct the County Attorney to draft the necessary changes to 
the contract.  
 
 
  

020712 BCC Meeting

91



                 W A T A U G A   C O U N T Y 

                               MAINTENANCE DEPARTMENT 

                                969 West King St.,  Boone, NC  28607  -  Phone (828) 264-1430 
                                                                                                               Fax     (828) 264-1473 

 

TO:  Deron Geouque, County Manager 

FROM:  Robert Marsh, Maintenance Director 

SUBJECT: Mowing Contract 

DATE:  January 27, 2012 

 

I received the Estate Maintenance proposal to extend their contract for an additional two years per the 
terms of the 2009 Contract.  In their proposal, Estate Maintenance agrees to extend their services at the 
current contract price of $77,000 for the services described in “Bid Form A,” for an additional twenty-
four months.   

Estate Maintenance has provided excellent service for the past two and half years, therefore I recommend  
the County extend the agreement for an additional two years.   

I have attached the Estate Maintenance  January 26, 2012 Proposal, the  July 1, 2009 Contract for  
Mowing Services and my April 1, 2009 Memorandum to the County Manager summarizing the bid 
results with a recommendation to hire the low bidder, Estate Maintenance Company. 

Please review this issue and if you are in agreement I will forward the contract to the County Attorney for 
examination and to modify the document as necessary to reflect the two year extension. 

Please call if you have questions. 

 

Thank you. 

 

 

020712 BCC Meeting

92



020712 BCC Meeting

93



020712 BCC Meeting

94



020712 BCC Meeting

95



020712 BCC Meeting

96



020712 BCC Meeting

97



020712 BCC Meeting

98



020712 BCC Meeting

99



020712 BCC Meeting

100



020712 BCC Meeting

101



020712 BCC Meeting

102



020712 BCC Meeting

103



Blank Page 
 
 

020712 BCC Meeting

104



AGENDA ITEM 9: 

PLANNING AND INSPECTIONS MATTERS 

A.  Proposed Language Access Plan for CDBG Scattered Site Housing Project 
 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Mr. Joe Furman will request the Board adopt the required Language Access Plan to satisfy the 
requirements of the Community Investment and Assistance for the Community Development 
Block Grant (CDBG) program.  The adoption of the plan is only for the ongoing CDBG 
Scattered Site Housing Program and failure to do so may result in CDBG funds being frozen.  
The Plan will expire upon close-out of the current program and require the adoption of a new 
plan upon acceptance of the next CDBG funding cycle anticipated for 2013. 
 
Staff requests the Board approve the Language Access Plan as presented contingent upon County 
Attorney review.   
 
 
  

020712 BCC Meeting

105



020712 BCC Meeting

106



020712 BCC Meeting

107



NC	CI	LAP	template	4/2011	 Page	1	
 

Language Access Plan 
4-1 

 
Watauga County  

CDBG Scattered Site Housing Program #09-C-2010 
 

The purpose of this Policy and Plan is to ensure compliance with Title VI of the Civil 
Rights Act of 1964, and other applicable federal and state laws and their implementing 
regulations with respect to persons with limited English proficiency (LEP).  Title VI of 
the Civil Rights Act of 1964 prohibits discrimination based on the ground of race, color 
or national origin by any entity receiving federal financial assistance.  Administrative 
methods or procedures, which have the effect of subjecting individuals to discrimination 
or defeating the objectives of these regulations, are prohibited. 
 
In order to avoid discrimination on the grounds of national origin, all programs or 
activities administered by Watauga County must take adequate steps to ensure that their 
policies and procedures do not deny or have the effect of denying LEP individuals with 
equal access to benefits and services for which such persons qualify.  This Policy defines 
the responsibilities the agency has to ensure LEP individuals can communicate 
effectively. 
 
This policy and plan is effective February 7, 2012 until program close-out 
 
 

I. Scope of Policy 
 

These requirements will apply to Watauga County (herein referred to as “the agency”) 
including subcontractors, vendors, and sub-recipients. 
 
The agency will ensure that LEP individuals are provided meaningful access to benefits 
and services provided through contractors or service providers receiving sub-grants from 
the agency. 
 
 

II. Definitions 
 

A. CI:  Community Investment and Assistance, North Carolina Department of 
Commerce  

B. Limited English Proficient (LEP) individual – Any prospective, potential, or 
actual recipient of benefits or services from the agency who cannot speak, read, 
write or understand the English language at a level that permits them to interact 
effectively with health care providers and social service agencies. 
 

C. Vital Documents – These forms include, but are not limited to, applications, 
consent forms, all compliance plans, bid documents, fair housing information, 
citizen participation plan, letters containing important information regarding 

020712 BCC Meeting

108



NC	CI	LAP	template	4/2011	 Page	2	
 

participation in a program; notices pertaining to the reduction, denial, or 
termination of services or benefits, including the right to appeal such actions, or 
that require a response from beneficiary notices advising LEP persons of the 
availability of free language assistance, LEP outreach materials, and any other 
documents determined by agency to be vital documents.  
 

D. Title VI Compliance Officer:  The person or persons responsible for compliance 
with the Title VI LEP policies.   
 

E. Substantial number of LEP:  5% or 1,000 people, whichever is smaller, are 
potential applicants or recipients of the agency and speak a primary language 
other than English and have limited English proficiency.   
 

 
III. Providing Notice to LEP Individuals 
 

A. The agency will take appropriate steps to inform all applicants, recipients, 
community organizations, and other interested persons, including those whose 
primary language is other than English, of the provisions of this policy.  Such 
notification will also identify the name, office telephone number, and office 
address of the Title VI compliance officer(s).   
 
List the current name, office telephone number and office address of the 
Title VI compliance officers: 
Joe Furman 
Watauga County Planning & Inspections Director 
331 Queen Street, Suite A 
Boone, NC 28607 
(828) 265-8043 
 
 

B. The agency will post and maintain signs in regularly encountered languages other 
than English in waiting rooms, reception areas and other initial points of contact.  
These signs will inform applicants and beneficiaries of their right to free language 
assistance services and invite them to identify themselves as persons needing such 
services. 
 
Signs will be posted in the County Administration Building and in the 
Planning & Inspections Department in the East Annex. 
      

 
C. The agency will include statements of the right to free language assistance in 

Spanish and other significant languages in all outreach material that is routinely 
disseminated to the public (including electronic text).   

 

020712 BCC Meeting

109



NC	CI	LAP	template	4/2011	 Page	3	
 

The agency will also disseminate information in the following manner: 
                  

 
 Printed information will be made available at selected agency-owned buildings 
that explain the rights provided by this policy. In addition, the policy will be 
accessible on the agency’s web site. 

 
 
IV. Provision of Services to LEP Applicants/Recipients 
  

 
A. Assessing Linguistic Needs of Potential Applicants and Recipients 

 
1. The agency will assess the language needs of the population to be served, 

by identifying: 
 

a. The language needs of each LEP applicant/recipient 
b. The points of contact where language assistance is needed; and 
c. The resources needed to provide effective language assistance 

including location, availability and arrangements necessary for 
timely use. 

 
2. Determining the Language Needs of the Population to be Served 
 

The agency is responsible for assessing the needs of the population to be 
served.  Such assessment will include, but not be limited to the following: 
 
a. The non-English languages that are likely to be encountered in its 

program will be identified. 
 

b. An estimate of the number of people in the community for whom 
English is not the primary language used for communication will 
be completed and updated annually.  To identify the languages and 
number of LEP individuals local entities should review: 

 
i. census data 
ii. school system data 
iii. reports from federal, state, and local governments 
iv. community agencies’ information, and 
v. data from client files 

 
c. The points of contact in the program or activity where language 

assistance is likely to be needed will be identified. 
 
 
 

020712 BCC Meeting

110



NC	CI	LAP	template	4/2011	 Page	4	
 

3. Determining the Language Needs of Each Applicant/Recipient 
 

 
The agency will determine the language needs of each applicant/recipient.  
Such assessment will include, but not be limited to the following: 
 
a. At the first point of contact, each applicant/recipient will be 

assessed to determine the individual’s primary language.   
 

Check all methods that will be used: 
 

 multi-language identification cards, a poster-size language 
list, or the use of “I speak” peel-off language identification 
cards for indicating preferred languages 

 
 English proficiency assessment tools, provided they can be 

administered in a manner that is sensitive to and respectful 
of individual dignity and privacy 

 
 

b. If the LEP person does not speak or read any of these languages, 
the agency will use a telephone interpreting service to identify the 
client’s primary language. 

 
c. Staff will not solely rely on their own assessment of the applicant 

or recipient’s English proficiency in determining the need for an 
interpreter.  If an individual requests an interpreter, an interpreter 
will be provided free of charge.  A declaration of the client will be 
used to establish the client’s primary language.   

 
d. When staff place or receive a telephone call and cannot determine 

what language the other person on the line is speaking, a telephone 
interpreting service will be utilized in making the determination. 

 
e. If any applicant/recipient is assessed as LEP, they will be informed 

of the availability of free language interpretative services.  When 
there is a direct (face-to-face) contact with a person assessed as 
LEP and whose primary language is one of the ones identified in 
Section IV.C. below, a written notice of the availability of free 
language interpretative services will be provided. 

 
B. Provision of Bilingual/Interpretive Services 

 
1. The agency will ensure that effective bilingual/interpretive services are 

provided to serve the needs of the non-English speaking population.  The 
provision of bilingual/interpretive services will be prompt without undue 

020712 BCC Meeting

111



NC	CI	LAP	template	4/2011	 Page	5	
 

delays.  In most circumstances, this requires language services to be 
available during all operating hours. 
 
This requirement will be met by:        
 
Bilingual agency staff is available. If staff is not able to assist the Limited 
English Proficient person in a reasonable amount of time, a telephone 
interpreter service will be used.     
 

2. The agency will provide language assistance at all level of interaction with 
LEP individuals, including telephone interactions.   
 
Describe how this requirement will be met:       
 
At the initial point of contact, it will be determined by the agency or 
administration staff if the LEP individual is proficient enough in English 
to request that translation services be provided.  If the individual is able to 
request translation services, their contact information will be taken.  
Agency staff will contact the LEP individual and provide the required 
translation services.  If neither administration staff nor agency staff is 
available to provide translation services in a reasonable amount of time, 
telephone translation service will be provided. 

 
 
3. Interpreter Standards 

 
a. Those providing bilingual/interpretive services will meet the 

linguistic and cultural competency standards set forth below.  The 
agency will ensure that interpreters and self-identified bilingual 
staff, have first been screened to ensure that the following 
standards are met before being used for interpreter services:    

 
i. Can fluently and effectively communicate in both English 

and the primary language of the LEP individual 
ii. Can accurately and impartially interpret to and from such 

languages and English 
iii. Has a basic knowledge of specialized terms and concepts 

used frequently in the provision of the agency’s services 
iv. Demonstrates cultural competency 
v. Understands the obligation to maintain confidentiality 
vi. Understands the roles of interpreters and the ethics 

associated with being an interpreter 
 

The agency will ensure that all bilingual interpreters have a basic understanding 
of the CDBG program, understand the need for confidentiality and cultural competency, 
and will provide an CDBG administrative staff person to accompany the interpreter to 

020712 BCC Meeting

112



NC	CI	LAP	template	4/2011	 Page	6	
 

provide more detailed explanations of the CDBG program and requirements should the 
need arise. 

 
b. When staff members have reason to believe that an interpreter is 

not qualified or properly trained to serve as an interpreter, the 
agency will utilize a language service. 

 
4. Using Family Members or Friends as Interpreters 
 

a. The agency will first inform an LEP person, in the primary 
language of the LEP person, of the right to free interpreter services 
and the potential problems for ineffective communication.  If the 
LEP person declines such services and requests the use of a family 
member or friend, the agency may utilize the family member or 
friend to interpret only if the use of such person would not 
compromise the effectiveness or services or violate the LEP 
person’s confidentiality.  The agency will monitor these 
interactions and again offer interpreter services, if it appears there 
are problems with this arrangement. 

 
b. The agency will indicate in the LEP individual’s file that an offer 

of interpreter services was made and rejected; that the individual 
was informed of potential problems associated with using friends 
or family members and the name of the person serving as an 
interpreter at the LEP individual’s request. 

 
c. Only under extenuating circumstances shall the agency allow a 

minor (under the age of 18 years) to temporarily act as an 
interpreter.  The agency will keep a written record of when it has 
used a minor as an interpreter, and this information will be shared 
with the CI upon request. 

 
5. The agency will not require the applicant/recipient to pay for 

bilingual/interpretive services. 
 
 

C. Provision of Written Translations 
 
1. The agency must provide written materials in languages other than English 

where a substantial number or percentage of the population eligible to be 
served or likely to be directly affected by the program needs services or 
information in a language other than English to communicate effectively. 
 
 
 
 

020712 BCC Meeting

113



NC	CI	LAP	template	4/2011	 Page	7	
 

2. Translation of Vital Documents 
 

a. The agency will ensure that vital documents for locally designed 
programs are translated at minimum into Spanish. 

 
b. When CI forms and other written material contain spaces in which 

the local entity is to insert information, this inserted information 
will also be in the individual’s primary language.  When such 
forms are completed by applicants/recipients in their primary 
language, the information must be accepted. 

 
c. If, as a result of the local language assessment, it appears there are 

a substantial number of potential applicants or recipients of the 
agency (defined as 5% or 1,000 people whichever is less) who are 
LEP and speak a language other than Spanish, the agency will 
translate and provide vital documents in the appropriate language.  
 

d. The agency will keep a record of all vital documents translated, 
and will submit this information to CI at their request. 
 

3. If the primary language of an LEP applicant or recipient is a language 
other than Spanish and the language does not meet the threshold for 
translation as defined in the preceding paragraph, the LEP individual who 
requests a translation will be informed in their own language of the right 
to oral translation of written notices.  The notification will include, in the 
primary language of the applicant/recipient, the following language:   
 
IMPORTANT:  IF YOU NEED HELP IN READING THIS, ASK THE 
AGENCY FOR AN INTERPRETER TO HELP.  AN INTERPRETER IS 
AVAILABLE FREE OF CHARGE. 

 
D. Documentation of Applicant/Recipient Case Records 

 
1. The agency will maintain case record documentation in sufficient detail to 

permit a reviewer to determine the agency’s compliance with this policy. 
 
2. The agency will ensure that case record documentation, including 

computerized records if appropriate, identifies the applicants/recipient’s 
ethnic origin and primary language.  In those cases where the 
applicant/recipient is non-English speaking, the agency will: 

  
a. Document the individual’s acceptance or refusal of forms or other 

written materials offered in the individual’s primary language. 
 

b. Document the method used to provide bilingual services, e.g., 
assigned worker is bilingual, other bilingual employee acted as 

020712 BCC Meeting

114



NC	CI	LAP	template	4/2011	 Page	8	
 

interpreter, volunteer interpreter was used, or client provided 
interpreter.  When a minor is used as interpreter, the agency will 
document the circumstances requiring temporary use of a minor 
and will provide this information to CI upon request. 
 

3. Consent for the release of information will be obtained from applicants/ 
recipients when individuals other than agency employees are used as 
interpreters and the case record will be so documented. 

 
 

E. Staff Development and Training 
 
1. The agency will provide staff training at new employee orientation and 

continuing training programs.  The training will include, but not be limited 
to:   
 
a. Language assistance policies and procedures, resources available to 

support such procedures, methods of effective use of interpreters, and 
familiarization with the discrimination complaint process.   

 
b. Cultural awareness information, including specific cultural 

characteristics of the groups served by the agency to provide a better 
understanding of, and sensitivity to, the various cultural groups to 
ensure equal delivery of services. 

 
2. The agency will provide or ensure training is provided for bilingual staff 

and interpreters employed or utilized by the agency.  This includes the 
ethics of interpreting, including confidentiality; methods of interpreting; 
orientation to the organization; specialized terminology used by the 
agency; and cultural competency.  
 

3. The agency will ensure that applicable grantees, contractors, cooperative 
agreement recipients and other entities receiving state or federal dollars 
are trained in the requirements of this policy. 
 
Consultants hired by the agency to provide CDBG grant administration 
will be made aware of, and will be required to attend any training 
required by CI concerning this policy. Consultants will then be required to 
insure compliance with this policy with any engineers or contractors 
procured to complete CDBG activities. 
 

 
4. The agency will collect and maintain the following information about 

training provided to staff:  the date(s) of such training, the content of such 
training, the number and types of credit hours awarded; and the names and 
identifying information of each attendee at the training.  The agency will 

020712 BCC Meeting

115



NC	CI	LAP	template	4/2011	 Page	9	
 

ensure that grantees, contractors, cooperative agreement recipients and 
other applicable funded entities collect and maintain such information as 
well. 

 
V. Compliance Procedures, Reporting and Monitoring 

 
A. Reporting 

 
1. The agency will complete an annual compliance report and send this 

report to CI.   
 

B. Monitoring 
 
1. The agency will complete a self-monitoring report on a quarterly basis, 

using a standardized reporting system providing by the CI. These reports 
will be maintained and stored by the Title VI compliance officer and will 
be provided to the CI upon request.   

 
2. The agency will cooperate, when requested, with special review by the CI.   

 
VI. Applicant/Recipient Complaints of Discriminatory Treatment 

 
A. Complaints 

 
1. The agency will provide assistance to LEP individuals who do not speak 

or write in English if they indicate that they would like to file a complaint.  
A complaint will be filed in writing, contain the name and address of the 
person filing it or his/her designee and briefly describe the alleged 
violation of this policy.   
 

2. The agency will maintain records of any complaints filed, the date of 
filing, actions taken and resolution.   

 
3. The agency will notify the appropriate agency or Division within CI of 

complaints filed the date of filing, actions taken and resolution. This 
information will be provided within 30 days of resolution.   

 
B. Investigation 

 
1. The CI Compliance Office will conduct an investigation of the allegations 

of the complaint.  The investigation will afford all interested persons and 
their representatives, if any, an opportunity to submit evidence relevant to 
the complaint. 

 
2. The investigation will not exceed 30 days, absent a 15-day extension for 

extenuating circumstances. 

020712 BCC Meeting

116



NC	CI	LAP	template	4/2011	 Page	10	
 

 
 
 

C. Resolution of Matters 
 
1. If the investigation indicates a failure to comply with the Act, the local 

unit of government, agency Director or his/her designee will so inform the 
recipient and the matter will be resolved by informal means whenever 
possible within 60 days. 

 
2. If the matter cannot be resolved by informal means, then the individual 

will be informed of his or her right to appeal further to the Department of 
Justice. This notice will be provided in the primary language of the 
individual with Limited English Proficiency.   

 
3. If not resolved by CI, then complaint will be forwarded to DOJ, HUD 

Field Office.  
 
 

Adopted this _______ day of ___________________, 20__. 
 
 
 

__________________________________ (Chief Elected Official) 
 
 

 
ATTEST:  __________________________ (Clerk) 

 

020712 BCC Meeting

117



Blank Page 
 
 

020712 BCC Meeting

118



AGENDA ITEM 9: 

PLANNING AND INSPECTIONS MATTERS 

B.  Proposed 2012 Hazardous Materials Emergency Planning Grant Agreement 
 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Mr. Furman will present a request to accept a Hazardous Materials Emergency Planning Grant in 
the amount of $5,000.  The grant requires no County match.  The scenario will be an accident at 
an ASU lab with the release of hazardous materials.  The table-top exercise is proposed to be 
conducted on 2/22/2012 and the full scale exercise to occur 3/30/2012. 
 
Board approval is required to accept the planning grant and proceed with the exercise. 
 
  

020712 BCC Meeting

119



020712 BCC Meeting

120



020712 BCC Meeting

121



020712 BCC Meeting

122



020712 BCC Meeting

123



020712 BCC Meeting

124



020712 BCC Meeting

125



020712 BCC Meeting

126



020712 BCC Meeting

127



020712 BCC Meeting

128



020712 BCC Meeting

129



020712 BCC Meeting

130



020712 BCC Meeting

131



020712 BCC Meeting

132



020712 BCC Meeting

133



020712 BCC Meeting

134



020712 BCC Meeting

135



Blank Page 
 
 

020712 BCC Meeting

136



AGENDA ITEM 9: 

PLANNING AND INSPECTIONS MATTERS 

C.  Brookshire Wetlands Proposal 
 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Carroll and Carroll purchased a 148-acre tract of land located on Old Highway 421 South, 
currently being marketed for mixed use development.  Blue Ridge Development Group (BRDG) 
was hired to review wetlands and jurisdictional streams located on the property.  Should the 
property be developed for mixed use, significant impacts would occur to wetlands and 
jurisdictional streams.  Federal law would require the impacts to be mitigated.  One possible 
option being suggested is to establish a mitigation “bank” on property owned by the County on 
Brookshire Road.   
 
The option would enhance, expand, and maintain the wetlands and jurisdictional streams on the 
County property referenced above.  In return for County support, BRDG is proposing to 
construct the greenway along the South Fork of the New River for the entire length of County-
owned property.  The County is under consideration for a grant to construct this greenway which 
requires a 50% matching grant.  The County’s match would be “in-kind” in the form of 
Sanitation Department personnel constructing the greenway and grant funds paying for the 
materials.  It is uncertain as to the County’s likelihood in being awarded the grant; however, 
accepting the BRDG proposal would allow the greenway to be constructed without affecting the 
ability to leverage the grant funds if awarded.  Staff does not believe the proposal for wetlands 
mitigation would affect any future development at the Brookshire Complex.  The County 
Attorney has been made aware of the potential project and is currently reviewing the proposal. 
 
The report is for informational purposes and to gauge the Board’s interest in possibly pursuing 
BRDG’s proposal.  Staff seeks direction from the Board. 
  

020712 BCC Meeting

137



1

Anita.Fogle

From: Joe Furman
Sent: Wednesday, February 01, 2012 10:05 AM
To: Deron.Geouque
Cc: Anita.Fogle
Subject: agenda item - Brookshire wetlands proposal
Attachments: Proposal.docx; EXHIBIT_A.pdf

Deron, 
A 148 acre tract of land located on Old Highway 421 South, owned by Carroll and Carroll is currently being marketed for mixed 
use development, and is likely to be developed as such. In order to prepare for this, the owner contracted with Blue Ridge 
Development Group, LLC (BRDG) to assess the tract regarding probable impact upon wetlands and “jurisdictional” (regulated) 
streams. It has been determined there will be substantial impact; federal law requires that the impacts be mitigated. BRDG is 
proposing to establish a mitigation “bank” on the County’s property on Brookshire Road near the Ted Mackorell Soccer Complex. 
The County’s property contains wetlands and jurisdictional streams; the proposal is to enhance, expand and maintain these as 
shown on the attached map. (The National Committee For The New River, endorsed by the County, unsuccessfully applied for 
grant funds for a very similar wetlands restoration and enhancement project there in 2009.) In payment, BRDG is proposing to 
construct the planned greenway along the South Fork New River for the entire length of the property. The County applied for a 
grant, which is pending, to construct this greenway. The grant is a 50% matching grant; the County’s match is to be “in‐kind” 
whereby Sanitation Department personnel would construct the greenway and the grant funds would purchase the materials. 
Accepting the BRDG proposal would enable either replacing the grant (if awarded) or attempting to restructure it to leverage the 
BRDG proposal. The likelihood of being awarded the grant is unknown, but it is certain that there is substantial competition for 
it. Stephen Poulos, Eric Woolridge and I have reviewed the proposal and accompanying map, and do not believe the project 
would interfere with any future plans for the property.  
 
I have discussed the proposal with the County Attorney; he is reviewing it and will likely have some comments. I request that 
this be placed on the February 7th Commissioners meeting agenda for consideration. Thanks. 
Joe 
 
Joseph A. Furman, AICP 
Director, Watauga County Planning & Inspections and Economic Development 
331 Queen Street, Suite A 
Boone, NC 28607 
(828) 265-8043 
(828) 265-8080 (fax) 
 joe.furman@watgov.org  
 
 

020712 BCC Meeting

138



Proposal for the Development of a Stream and Wetland Mitigation Bank 

To: Watauga County 
Attention Joe Furman, AICP 
Director, Watauga County Planning & Inspections and Economic Development 
331 Queen Street, Suite A 
Boone, NC 28607 
Sent via Email to joe.furman@watgov.org 
 
From: Blue Ridge Development Group, LLC 
1305 South Collegiate Drive 
Wilkesboro, NC 28697 

 
Background and Purpose 
Blue Ridge Development Group, LLC (BRDG) proposes to reach an agreement with Watauga County for 
the purposes of establishing a mitigation bank on 3 adjacent parcels of land located on Brookshire Road 
in Watauga County, NC.  The properties are referenced on the attached exhibit and will from henceforth 
be known as the Brookshire Park Stream and Wetland Mitigation Bank.  
 
Tract #1 
PIN: 2921‐00‐6676‐000 
DEED BK/PG: 729/445 
 
Tract # 2 
PIN: 2911‐92‐5136‐000 
DEED BK/PG: 1134/015 
 
Tract # 3 
PIN: 2921‐02‐9838‐000 
DEED BK/PG: 1134/004 
 

A mitigation  bank  is  a  site  where  wetlands,  streams,  and/or  other  resources  are  restored, 
created,  enhanced  and  protected  for  posterity.  The  bank  is  expressly  for  the  purpose  of  providing 
compensatory mitigation  in advance of authorized  impacts to similar resources. The compensation can 
be  for  impacts  to waters  and wetlands  regulated  under  Clean Water Act  Section  10/404,  401,  state 
buffer  rules,  state  nutrient  rules,  endangered  species  habitat,  and  flood  plain  attenuation.  This 
represents a market‐based approach as opposed to state provided in lieu fee mitigation.  

This  proposal  is  in  direct  response  to  the  regulatory  burden  and  compensatory  mitigation 
requirements  that  are  anticipated  from  the  commercial development of  the Carroll  and Carroll  tract 
located on Old US 421  in the Rutherwood community.   (Book 1577, Page 113 ‐ PIN 2921‐92‐4995‐000) 
Mitigation credits generated from this project will be sold at the sole discretion of BRDG, LLC.  
 
Terms 

BRDG, LLC proposes to develop, own, manage, market, and sell any and all attainable mitigation 
credits at its sole expense and for its sole profit (exhibit A).   

At  the  end  of  a  favorable  discovery  as  outlined  below  in  the  due  diligence  section  and  in 
consideration  BRDG,  LLC  will  at  no  expense  to  the  county,  design,  permit,  and  construct  an 
approximately 8’ wide and 3000’  linear feet greenway trail as depicted on the attached exhibit A map. 

020712 BCC Meeting

139



The trail shall be 8’ wide with an ABC base and a top coat of rock dust.  The trail shall be completed no 
later than 6 months following the end of the due diligence period. A one year warranty will be provided 
to  the  county  for  the workmanship  of  the  trail  construction. BRDG,  LLC  shall  not  be  responsible  for 
damages incurred by flooding or acts of God.  

Simultaneously  to  the  development  of  the  trail, wetland/stream mitigation  construction will 
occur at BRDG, LLC’s sole expense. Once construction is complete BRDG, LLC will be held responsible by 
the IRT for maintenance, monitoring and stability of the mitigation for a 5 year period.  Following the 5 
year period the IRT deems the site stable and thus ends the requirement for additional liability.  
 
Due Diligence Period 
The due diligence period will begin on the date of execution of this agreement and span up to 200 days. 
This  period will  be  used  to  entitle  the Mitigation  Bank with  the  Interagency  Review  Team  (USACE, 
NCDWQ,  etc.)  The  entitlement  includes  the  bank  prospectus,  financial  performa,  mitigation  bank 
Instrument,  permitting,  and  public  hearings  associated  with  the  regulatory,  physical,  and 
cultural/historic  aspects  of  the  property.    At  any  time  during  the  due  diligence  period  BRDG,  LLC 
reserves  the  right,  without  penalty,  to  withdraw  from  this  agreement  based  on  discovery  of  any 
information  that makes  the site unviable as a stream and wetland mitigation bank. BRDG, LLC retains 
the  right  to  proceed  prior  to  the  200  day  period.    As  a  part  of  the mitigation  banking  instrument 
approval,  recorded  deed  restrictions  to  the  proposed  property  are  required.  These  deed  restrictions 
must provide  that  the property be perpetually preserved as wetlands and streams and  recorded with 
the register of deeds. The deed restrictions shall be suitable to the IRT and will become null and void if 
the mitigation  site or  grant  funding becomes unviable.    If  the  site becomes unviable  as  a mitigation 
bank, and as consideration for the significant resources expended, BRDG, LLC reserves and  is afforded 
the  right  to  at  its  expense,  partner with  the  county  to  pursue  grant  funding  related  to  stream  and 
wetland restoration of the areas identified in exhibit A.  In this case the county would be the applicant 
for any and all grants.  
 
Liability 
At no time shall the county be liable for any costs associated with the due diligence or any project costs 
associated with the mitigation bank. BRDG, LLC and its contractors shall at all times have general liability 
insurance, professional liability, and workers compensation.  
 
 
 

 
BLUE RIDGE DEVELOPMENT GROUP, LLC   Member‐Manager    Date 
 
 

 
Watauga County Authorized Representative  Title        Date 
 

 

NORTH CAROLINA 

WATAUGA COUNTY 

  I certify that the following person personally appeared before me this day, and: 

020712 BCC Meeting

140



 I have personal knowledge of the identity of the principal(s); 
 I have seen satisfactory evidence of the principal’s identity, by a current state or federal 

identification and with the principal’s photograph in the form of 
____________________________; 

 A credible witness has sworn to the identity of the principal(s); 
 

Each acknowledging to me that the above signature has voluntarily executed the foregoing 
instrument for the purposes therein expressed and in the capacity indicated:   

 

Witness my hand and official stamp or seal, this ____ day of ________________, 20__. 

           

 

___________________________________________, Notary Public 

Print Name:  ________________________________ 

 

My Commission Expires: ______________ 

 

STAMP/SEAL 

 

 

 

 

 

020712 BCC Meeting

141



SITE #1
OWNER: WATAUGA COUNTY

814 WEST KING STREET
BOONE, NC 28607

PIN: 2921-00-6676-000
DEED BK/PG: 729/445
ACREAGE: 7.64

NEW RIVER

BROOKSHIRE ROAD

FILL TO
REMAIN

PRACTICE FIELD
TO REMAIN

MITIGATION BANK TO BE
PERPETUALLY PROTECTED
LEGALLY VIA RECORDED
PLAT OR LEGAL DESCRIPTION
WITH DEED RESTRICTIONS.

GREENWAY

US 421 S

SITE #3
OWNER: WATAUGA COUNTY

814 WEST KING STREET
BOONE, NC 28607

PIN: 2921-02-9838-000
DEED BK/PG: 1134/004
ACREAGE: 40.75

SITE #2
OWNER: WATAUGA COUNTY

814 WEST KING STREET
BOONE, NC 28607

PIN: 2921-02-9838-000
DEED BK/PG: 1134/015
ACREAGE: 32.62

DA
TE

:

SCALE:

SHEET:

(H)
(V)

PR
EP

AR
ED

 F
OR

:

DRAWN BY:

APPROVED BY:

PROJECT NUMBER:

DATE:

É COPYRIGHT 2011 BY BLUE RIDGE ENVIRONMENTAL CONSULTANTS, P.A., ALL RIGHTS RESERVED.  THIS PLAN MAY NOT BE RE-USED, SOLD, LOANED, OR GIVEN TO OTHERS.  REPRODUCTION OR PHOTOCOPYING OF THIS PLAN WITHOUT THE WRITTEN CONSENT OF BLUE RIDGE ENVIRONMENTAL CONSULTANTS, P.A. IS PROHIBITED AND IS A VIOLATION OF FEDERAL COPYRIGHT LAWS, PUNISHABLE BY FINES UP TO $100,000 PER OFFENSE.

0

PR
EL

IM
IN

AR
Y 

- N
OT

 R
EL

EA
SE

D 
FO

R 
CO

NS
TR

UC
TI

ON
DO

 N
OT

 S
CA

LE
 - 

PL
AN

S 
MU

ST
 B

E 
RE

CE
IV

ED
 A

S 
A 

CO
MP

LE
TE

 S
ET

RE
VI

SI
ON

S:

PR
EL

IM
IN

AR
Y

BL
UE

 R
ID

GE
 E

NV
IR

ON
ME

NT
AL

 C
ON

SU
LT

AN
TS

, P
A

NC
BE

LS
 E

NG
IN

EE
RI

NG
 F

IR
M 

#C
-3

44
8

EN
GI

NE
ER

IN
G 

| P
LA

NN
IN

G 
| E

NV
IR

ON
ME

NT
AL

13
05

 S
OU

TH
 C

OL
LE

GI
AT

E 
DR

IV
E

W
ILK

ES
BO

RO
, N

C 
28

69
7

33
6.8

44
.40

08
htt

p:/
/br

ec
.bi

z

BR
OO

KS
HI

RE
 P

AR
K 

PR
OP

OS
ED

 S
TR

EA
M 

& 

W
AT

AU
GA

 C
OU

NT
Y 

&
BL

UE
 R

ID
GE

 D
EV

EL
OP

ME
NT

 G
RO

UP
, L

LC

01/27/2012

J.EDWARDS

J.CHURCH

EX-A

1" = 150'

150150 75 300

EX
HI

BI
T 

A

W
ET

LA
ND

 M
IT

IG
AT

IO
N 

BA
NK

THIS IS FOR ILLUSTATION PURPOSE ONLY - NOT A LEGAL SURVEY.

020712 BCC Meeting

142



AGENDA ITEM 10: 

TAX MATTERS  

A.  Monthly Collections Report 
 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Tax Administrator Kelvin Byrd will present the monthly collections report and be available for 
questions and discussion.  
 
The report is for information only; therefore, no action is required. 
  

020712 BCC Meeting

143



Blank Page 
 
 

020712 BCC Meeting

144



AGENDA ITEM 10: 

TAX MATTERS  

B.  Refunds and Releases 
 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Mr. Byrd will present the Refunds and Releases Report.  Board action is required to accept the 
Refunds and Releases Report. 
 
  

020712 BCC Meeting

145



Blank Page 
 
 

020712 BCC Meeting

146



020712 BCC Meeting

147



020712 BCC Meeting

148



020712 BCC Meeting

149



020712 BCC Meeting

150



020712 BCC Meeting

151



020712 BCC Meeting

152



020712 BCC Meeting

153



020712 BCC Meeting

154



020712 BCC Meeting

155



020712 BCC Meeting

156



020712 BCC Meeting

157



020712 BCC Meeting

158



020712 BCC Meeting

159



020712 BCC Meeting

160



020712 BCC Meeting

161



020712 BCC Meeting

162



020712 BCC Meeting

163



020712 BCC Meeting

164



020712 BCC Meeting

165



020712 BCC Meeting

166



AGENDA ITEM 11: 

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 

A.  Proposed Resolution Supporting Road Improvements and Upgrades to Roby Greene Road 
(SR 1331B) 

 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Per Board direction, a resolution has been prepared for adoption in support of road 
improvements and upgrades to Roby Greene Road. 
 
Board action is requested. 
 
  

020712 BCC Meeting

167



STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
 
COUNTY OF WATAUGA 
 
 

RESOLUTION  
SUPPORTING ROAD IMPROVEMENTS AND UPGRADES 

TO ROBY GREENE ROAD (SR 1331B) 
 
 

WHEREAS, the North Carolina Department of Transportation held a public hearing to 
allow citizen comment on the Secondary Road Improvements Program for FY 2012; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Program indicated Roby Greene Road as the number one (1) priority for 

rural paving in Watauga County; and  
 
WHEREAS, this road has been identified as a priority project in the County for several 

years and serves a crucial importance to residents for every aspect of daily living, including but 
not limited to: access, employment, job development, safety, public services, school bus 
transportation, and mail delivery, and is a key element in the road network for the greater 
community; and 

 
WHEREAS, a strong contingent of citizens voiced their perilous experiences traveling on 

Roby Greene Road and emphasized the need for significant changes to ensure travelers’ safety; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, Roby Greene Road has suffered severe deterioration over time resulting in 

the need for substantial improvements, upgrades, and maintenance and repair of the existing 
road bed. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Watauga County Board of Commissioners 
hereby requests that the North Carolina Department of Transportation exhaust all possible 
means, be it through regularly budgeted, discretionary or any other funds available, to secure 
the necessary resources to rebuild and restore Roby Greene Road to a fully functioning road 
with the required improvements and upgrades to ensure a safe traveling experience. 
 

ADOPTED this the 7th day of February, 2012. 
 
 

________________________________ 
Nathan A. Miller, Chairman 

        Watauga County Board of Commissioners 
ATTEST: 
 
_______________________________ 
Anita J. Fogle, Clerk to the Board 

DRAFT 

020712 BCC Meeting

168



AGENDA ITEM 11: 

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 

B.  Proposed Resolution Establishing the Register of Deeds Salary 
 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Per Statute, prior to the filing period for the fall elections, the Board must establish the salary for 
the Register of Deeds in order for filing fees to be determined as listed in the draft resolution.  
The entry level salary on the County’s current pay plan is $49,663. 
 
Board action is required to set the salary by adopting the proposed resolution. 
 
  

020712 BCC Meeting

169



STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
 
COUNTY OF WATAUGA 
 
 

 
A RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING 

THE REGISTER OF DEEDS SALARY 
 
 
 WHEREAS, the present Watauga County Register of Deeds salary is $63,319; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Watauga County Commissioners desire to adopt a new salary for the office 
of Register of Deeds pursuant to North Carolina Statutes 153A-92 at a rate of $49,663 for the 
next term of office of the then Register of Deeds; and 
 
 WHEREAS, this resolution is made more than fourteen (14) days before the last day of 
filing notice of candidacy for this office. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that $49,663 shall be the annual salary for the 
office of the Register of Deeds when such person elected to the office in the next general 
election takes said office. 
 
 ADOPTED this the 7th day of February, 2012. 
 
 
 
       _________________________________ 
       Nathan A. Miller, Chairman 

Watauga County Board of Commissioners 
 
ATTEST: 
         (SEAL) 
________________________________ 
Anita J. Fogle 
Clerk to the Board     

DRAFT 

020712 BCC Meeting

170



020712 BCC Meeting

171



Blank Page 
 
 

020712 BCC Meeting

172



AGENDA ITEM 11: 

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 

C.  Tentative Agenda for Annual Pre-Budget Retreat 
 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
A draft agenda for the Board’s retreat scheduled for February 24th and 25th is enclosed for Board 
review.  The agenda may change between now and the retreat based on input from the Board or 
the County Manager receiving additional items for consideration.  County staff will start the 
process of preparing and compiling the information for the retreat.  Please feel free to contact me 
during the upcoming weeks should you have any questions or require additional information.   
 
 
  

020712 BCC Meeting

173



TENTATIVE RETREAT AGENDA 
WATAUGA COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 

COMMISSIONERS’ CONFERENCE ROOM 
WATAUGA COUNTY ADMINISTRATION BUILDING, BOONE, NC 

 

FEBRUARY 24 – 25, 2012 
 

TIME TOPIC PRESENTER PAGE 
 FRIDAY, FEBRUARY 24, 2012   

12:00 PM LUNCH & OPENING REMARKS MR. DERON GEOUQUE  
12.30 PM REVIEW OF CURRENT (FY 2012) BUDGET MS. MARGARET PIERCE  

 A.  Revenues    
 B. 1)  Sales & Property Taxes   
  2)  Departmental (Register of Deeds, Planning & Inspections, 

Parks & Recreation, and POA) 
  

 C. Expenditures    
 D. Fund Balance    
 E. Debt Service Report    

1:00 PM DISCUSSION OF FY 2013 BUDGET MS. MARGARET PIERCE  
 A. Budget Drivers    
 B. Expenditures    
 C. Funding of Non-County Departments    
 D. Special Appropriations (Private Non-Profits)    
 E. Schedule    

2:00 PM BREAK   
2:15 PM REVIEW OF CURRENT CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN (CIP) MR. DERON GEOUQUE   

 A. Current CIP Status Report & MR. ROBERT MARSH  
 B. Pool Status Report    
 C. Future Projects for Consideration    
 D. AppalCART Building    
 E. Daymark Lease     

2:45 PM TAX MATTERS MR. KELVIN BYRD  
 A. Tax Reval Report    
 B. Tax Base Projections    

3:00 PM SCHOOL BOARD FUNDING ISSUES   
 A. Schools’ Capital Improvement Plan      
 B. FY 2013 Funding Needs    

3:45 PM EMS REPORT/DISCUSSION MR. CRAIG SULLIVAN  
4:15 PM LANDFILL ENERGY PROJECTS DISCUSSION   

 A. Report on Recycling and Methane to Electricity Project MS. LISA DOTY   
 B. Review of Solar Energy Project MR. GED MOODY   

5:00 PM HEALTH DEPARTMENT REPORT/ISSUES MS. BETH LOVETTE  
5:30 PM WRAP UP, GOALS & OBJECTIVES, BOARD DIRECTIVES   
6:00 PM RECESS UNTIL SATURDAY, FEBRUARY 25, 2012 AT 9:00 AM   

    
    
    
    

DRAFT 
020712 BCC Meeting

174



TIME TOPIC PRESENTER PAGE 
 SATURDAY, FEBRUARY 25, 2012   

9:00 AM WATAUGA COMMUNITY HOUSING TRUST REPORT MR. SCOTT EGGERS  
9:15 AM ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMISSION (EDC) 

REPORT/DISCUSSION 
MR. KEITH HONEYCUTT 
AND MR. JOE FURMAN 

 

9:30 AM PLANNING AND INSPECTIONS MATTERS MR. JOE FURMAN  
10:00 AM TOURISM DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY (TDA) MR. ROB HOLTON, MR. 

WRIGHT TILLEY, AND 
MR. ERIC WOOLRIDGE 

 

10:45 AM CONSOLIDATED DISPATCH VICE-CHAIRMAN  
VINCE GABLE 

 

11:30 AM MISCELLANEOUS & COMMISSIONER MATTERS MR. DERON GEOUQUE  
 A. A Policy to Provide Preference to Local Vendors in Purchasing of 

Equipment and Supplies. 
   

 B. Courthouse Security Future Projects for Consideration    
 C. State Issues    

11:45 AM WRAP UP, GOALS & OBJECTIVES, BOARD DIRECTIVES   
12:00 PM ADJOURN   

 

020712 BCC Meeting

175



Blank Page 
 
 

020712 BCC Meeting

176



AGENDA ITEM 11: 

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 

D.  Incident Command System Classes 
 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Mr. Seth Norris is requesting the Board establish a time for training regarding the incident 
command system.  The training will take approximately 2 hours and is for elected officials and 
municipal and county management.   
 
Once a date is established local government officials will be notified.  There is no cost to the 
County.  Staff requests direction from the Board. 
 
  

020712 BCC Meeting

177



1

Anita.Fogle

From: Deron.Geouque
Sent: Friday, January 20, 2012 4:33 PM
To: Seth Norris
Cc: Anita.Fogle
Subject: RE: G-402 ICS for Agency Executives

Thank you Seth.  I will provide the information at the next Board meeting scheduled for February 7, 2012, at 8:00 AM 
and let you know what time they set. 
 
Sincerely,  
 
Deron Geouque 
Watauga County Manager 
814 West King Street 
Boone, NC 28607 
(P) 828-265-8000 
(F) 828-264-3230 
Email Deron.Geouque@watgov.org 
 
From: Seth Norris [mailto:norrissa@appstate.edu]  
Sent: Friday, January 20, 2012 4:13 PM 
To: Deron.Geouque 
Cc: Steve.Sudderth 
Subject: G-402 ICS for Agency Executives 
 
Deron, 
 
Thanks again for considering the course. I will let you all determine the best time for the training which takes about 2 hours. The 
best time for me is in late February or March, probably Weds, Thurs, or Fridays in the afternoon. Below are the course objectives 
to give you and the commissioners a better idea of the content: 

 Describe the Incident Command System (ICS). 
 Describe the various ways ICS can be applied. 
 Define the role of an Executive/Senior Official relative to the ICS.  
 Describe the major responsibilities of an Executive/ Senior Official as related to an incident. 
 Demonstrate basic familiarity with ICS terminology. 
 Describe the basic organization of ICS and know the functional responsibilities of the Command and General 

Staffs. 
 Describe issues that influence incident complexity and the tools available to analyze complexity. 
 Describe the differences between on‐incident ICS organizations and activities and the activities accomplished 

by Emergency Operations Centers (EOCs), Area Commands, and Multiagency Coordination Systems (MACS). 
 Explain the administrative, logistical, financial, and reporting implications of large incident operations. 
 Describe the sources of information regarding the incident and how to access them. 
 Describe types of agency(ies) policies and guidelines that influence management of incident or event 

activities. 
 
Just let me know what you all determine or if you have any questions. I will gladly let the other managers know about the 
opportunity once the date is established. 
 
Take care and have a great weekend, 
Seth 
 

020712 BCC Meeting

178



AGENDA ITEM 11: 

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 

E.  Boards & Commissions 

 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Two terms on the Watauga County Tourism Development Authority (WCTDA) are set to expire 
at the end of February 2012.  Both Mr. Holton and Mr. Hall are willing to continue to serve if so 
appointed.  Bios for Ms. Kim Rogers and Mr. Jim Neustadt are included for your review as they 
were nominated at the last Board meeting. 
 
Also, per TDA Bylaws, the TDA Chairman is due for appointment by the Board of 
Commissioners. 
 
The above are second readings and, therefore, action may be taken, if so desired. 
  

020712 BCC Meeting

179



020712 BCC Meeting

180



020712 BCC Meeting

181



 
 
 
 
 
January 19, 2012 
 
 
Nathan Miller, Chairman 
Watauga County Commissioners 
 
Dear Nathan: 
 
I am delighted to be in consideration for a board seat for the Watauga County 
TDA. Having been involved in the vacation rental business since 1978, I feel lead 
to not only collect this tax but help administer where the monies can benefit this 
gorgeous area the most in guaranteeing continued tourism.  Watauga County 
needs to be the buzz that vacationers talk about to friends and neighbors in their 
home towns, long after their trips.  
 
Here are my qualifications: 
 
1978 to 1995-I worked in all aspects of Jenkins Realtors for my parents from 
cleaning houses, secretary duties to the Sales Dept, managing the cleaning 
company, property and association management. 
 
1995 to Present-My sister (Pam Vines) and I bought Jenkins Realtors and created 
Jenkins Realtors, Inc., Jenkins Rentals, and P. K. Properties LLC. We manage 85 
vacation rental properties, 45 long term properties, 16 home owner associations 
(213 units), a cleaning company, and a maintenance company. 
 
Civic involvement 

 1996-2000 NC Real Estate Commission-Committee charged with creating 
the NC Vacation Rental Act 

 1994-1997 Board member Blowing Rock Chamber of Commerce, High 
Country Host 

 1991-2000-Board member, President, The Blowing Rock Stage Company 
 2000-2008-Board member, Treasurer The Blowing Rock Community Arts 

Center Foundation 
 2001-President The Rotary Club of Blowing Rock 
 1985-to present The Blowing Rock Trout Derby Committee 

 
 
 

020712 BCC Meeting

182



Church 
 Member and elder- Rumple Memorial Presbyterian Church 

 
My experience is extensive in creating and documenting, budgets, bids and 
grants.  I have learned first hand that being able to sustain a project is as 
important as creating it.  
 
Thanks again for this opportunity, I hope I can help.  Feel free to contact me 
with any questions kim@jenkinsrealtors.com or 828-295-9888 work or 828-262-
9994 home. 
 
Sincerely, 
 

Kim J Rogers 
Kim Rogers 
Owner / Broker 
Jenkins Rentals 
 
 
 
 

020712 BCC Meeting

183

mailto:kim@jenkinsrealtors.com


1

Anita.Fogle

From: Deron.Geouque
Sent: Monday, January 23, 2012 12:27 PM
To: Anita.Fogle
Subject: FW: Bio Request
Attachments: Watauga Co  TDA[1].pdf

2-7-2012 Boards and Commissions 
 
Deron Geouque 
Watauga County Manager 
814 West King Street 
Boone, NC 28607 
(P) 828-265-8000 
(F) 828-264-3230 
Email Deron.Geouque@watgov.org 
 
From: Nathan Miller  
Sent: Monday, January 23, 2012 11:52 AM 
To: Deron.Geouque 
Subject: FW: Bio Request 
 
  

From: Jim Neustadt [jimn@logcabinrentals.com] 
Sent: Wednesday, January 18, 2012 6:25 PM 
To: Nathan Miller 
Subject: Bio Request 

Nathan, per your request: 
Resident Valle Crucis for past ten years 
Had previously lived in Valle Crucis/Blowing Rock for an additional five years 
Licensed North Carolina Real Estate Broker for nine years 
Current owner Valle Crucis Log Cabin Rentals, Inc. (purchased business in 2002) 
Business is involved in property management, vacation rentals and real estate sales 
Our Company has contributed revenues of over $300,000 to the TDA 
  
Most recent previous employment: 
Sr. VP Marketing and Advertising Michaels Arts and Crafts, Irving TX (1999-2002) 
VP Advertising Lowes Home Improvement, Wilkesboro NC (1994-1999) 
My work experience has been in Sr. level marketing and advertising management positions for billion dollar 
multi-unit retail chains 
I have been responsible for Marketing budgets exceeding $350,000,000 annually 
I believe my business experience, both past and present, is directly transferrable to the needs of the TDA 
  
Nathan, please let me know if this is sufficient for your needs. 
My best, 
Jim 
  
Jim Neustadt 
Owner/Broker/Realtor 
Valle Crucis Log Cabin Rentals and Sales 

020712 BCC Meeting

184



2

PO Box 554 
Valle Crucis,  NC  28691 
Tel 828-963-7774 
Fax 828-963-6209 
www.logcabinrentals.com 
  

020712 BCC Meeting

185



Blank Page 
 
 

020712 BCC Meeting

186



AGENDA ITEM 11: 

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 

F.  Announcements 
 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
NCACC is requesting the submission of the County’s federal issues of statewide importance and 
the review of the 2011 Congressional issues for North Carolina.  
 
The Watauga Drug Treatment Court Team invites you to observe an upcoming session of Drug 
Treatment Court.  Upcoming sessions are scheduled for Wednesday, February 15, 2012, at 3:30 
P.M. and Wednesday, February 29, 2012, at 3:30 P.M. in the small courtroom. 
 
Watauga County Public Library has invited the Board to a dinner on Tuesday, February 21, 
2012, from 4:00 P.M. to 5:00 P.M. to learn about the library, economic development, 
technological updates, and more.  If you wish to attend, please inform Anita who will be happy 
to RSVP on your behalf. 
 
The Annual Pre-Budget Retreat is scheduled for February 24 (12:00 P.M.–6:00 P.M.) & 25, 
2012, (9:00 A.M.–12:00 P.M.). 
 
The 2012 Watauga County Economic Development Summit is scheduled for Wednesday, March 
7, 2012, from 1:00–5:00 P.M. at the Blowing Rock Art and History Museum in Downtown 
Blowing Rock. 
 
 
  

020712 BCC Meeting

187



1

Anita.Fogle

From: Deron.Geouque
Sent: Friday, January 20, 2012 4:36 PM
To: Anita.Fogle
Subject: FW: County Federal Issues - Please Respond by Feb. 10

2-7-2012 announcements  
 
Deron Geouque 
Watauga County Manager 
814 West King Street 
Boone, NC 28607 
(P) 828-265-8000 
(F) 828-264-3230 
Email Deron.Geouque@watgov.org 
 
From: Rebecca Troutman [mailto:rebecca.troutman@ncacc.org]  
Sent: Friday, January 20, 2012 12:38 PM 
To: Chair Commissioners 
Cc: County Managers; County Clerks; NCACC-Legislative 
Subject: County Federal Issues - Please Respond by Feb. 10 
 
To:    County Chairmen 
cc:    County Managers, County Clerks 

 
  
ISSUES:  

 NCACC solicits your county’s help in identifying those federal issues of statewide importance to all counties 
 NCACC asks that you review NCACC’s 2011 Congressional Issues of Interest to Counties and NACo’s 2012 

Legislative Priorities 
 NCACC’s Board of Directors will vote Feb. 22 to determine which issues to present to N.C. Congressional 

delegation during NACo’s Legislative Conference, March 3-7, Washington, D.C. 
  
ACTIONS NEEDED:  

 Please submit your county’s federal issues of statewide importance to all counties to NCACC by Friday, Feb. 
10 (see below for submission instructions) 

 Please plan to attend N.C. Congressional Breakfast on Wednesday, March 7, Washington, D.C. 
NCACC solicits your county’s help in identifying those federal issues of statewide importance to all counties.

In preparation for the upcoming NACo Legislative Conference and the scheduled Congressional breakfast with 
North Carolina delegates, NCACC is soliciting federal issues of interest to your county that are statewide in nature. 

020712 BCC Meeting

188



2

Each year, Association staff members compile Congressional issue papers for distribution to our Congressional
delegation and their staff. These issue papers, adopted by the NCACC Board of Directors, identify and summarize our 
counties' concerns regarding specific federal legislation and administrative rule-making that impact North Carolina 
county government. 

Please submit your county’s federal issues of statewide importance to NCACC by Friday, Feb. 10. 
We recognize that there are many potential issues, but we ask that you submit only 1-2 issues of the highest priority
so that we may better focus our efforts. 

Please fill out the issues form below for each proposal, and reply to this email with your county's proposals.
Prospective federal issues will be presented to the NCACC Board of Directors at its Feb. 22 meeting for consideration
and approval for inclusion into the 2012 Congressional issues packet. The Board will assess each issue based on its 
statewide county government impact and whether Congressional action is imminent. 

NCACC asks that you review NCACC’s 2011 Congressional Issues of Interest to Counties and NACo’s 2012 
Legislative Priorities. 
For your information, the NCACC Board of Directors approved the following statewide federal issues for 2011. Please 
find these listed below, along with a legislative status of each issue, based on any action by the 112th Congress: 

 2011 Congressional Issues for North Carolina Counties 

 Issue:    Oppose Federal Budget Cuts to Counties without Corresponding Cuts in Federal Mandates  

o Status: The Budget Control Act of 2011 sets deficit reduction targets of $841 billion for discretionary
spending caps and $1.2 trillion for the Super Committee’s deficit reduction plan. Since the committee 
could not reach consensus, and barring further congressional action, sequestration is scheduled to
begin Jan 2, 2013, leading to automatic across-the-board spending cuts of $2 trillion over 9 years, half
from defense and half from non-defense discretionary spending. 14% cuts are projected for 2013,
unless further legislative action is taken. 

 Issue:    Support County Government Preference for Service Delivery 

 Issue:    Support Remote Sales Tax Collection  

o Status: 3 bills have been introduced to move forward collection of remote sales taxes, taxes already
due and payable. The Main Street Fairness Act (S. 1452) and its House Companion H.R. 2701 would
codify the Streamlined Sales Tax Agreement. The Marketplace Fairness Act (S. 1832) provides 2 
options for remote sales tax collection: the Streamlined Sales and Use Tax Agreement and an
alternative where states may collect after adopting minimum simplification requirements. NC is in
compliance with the SSTA and has been a governing board member since inception. 

 Issue:    Oppose New EPA Ozone Standards for Primary and Secondary Designations 

o Status:  President Obama instructed EPA to withdraw the draft Ozone National Ambient Air Quality
Standards in early September, awaiting an update to the 2006 science review for reconsideration of the
ozone standard in 2013. 

 Issue:    Oppose Federal Preemption of State Law Regulating Collective Bargaining of Public
Employees 

o Status:  No legislation to preempt public employee collective bargaining has moved.        
 
Also for your information, please find following NACo’s 2012 legislative priorities, as adopted by the NACo
Board of Directors at its December 2011 meeting.  

 Promote a balanced approach to deficit reduction. Protect county programs during budget deficit reduction and
appropriation considerations. Balance includes looking at discretionary, defense and entitlement spending, and
revenue enhancements. 

 Support the reauthorization of the Farm Bill and Priority for Rural Development Programs. 
 Work to eliminate the federal health benefits "inmate exception" for persons in county jails and detention

centers who are in custody pending disposition of charges.  
 Maintain the original federal-state-local partnership for financing and delivering Medicaid and social services, 

and oppose measures that will shift Medicaid and social service costs to counties.  

020712 BCC Meeting

189



3

 Maintain full funding for Payments in Lieu Of Taxes (PILT), Secure Rural Schools (SRS) programs and
Community Self-Determination Act.  

 Reauthorize aviation and surface transportation programs. 
 Oppose unfunded mandates and preemptions.  

 
Please plan to attend N.C. Congressional Breakfast on Wednesday, March 7, Washington, D.C. 

As a reminder, the NACo Legislative Conference will be held Saturday - Wednesday, March 3-7, at the Washington 
Hilton Hotel in Washington, D.C. Please complete conference and hotel registrations as soon as possible to ensure
your stay at the Washington Hilton. 

NACo’s conference schedule should allow convenient participation by our Congressional delegation. The opening 
educational sessions are on Monday, March 5, beginning at 9 a.m., with the concluding event being visits to Capitol
Hill on Wednesday morning. Pre-conference workshops, steering committees and affiliate meetings will start on 
Saturday, March 3. 

NCACC members will caucus on Monday, March 5, from 4 – 5:30 p.m. NCACC will host a state reception for N.C.
attendees from 5:30 – 6:30 p.m. 

On Wednesday, March 7, the NCACC will sponsor its annual Congressional Breakfast from 8 - 9:30 a.m. in the Capitol 
Hill Club, 300 First Street SE.  

We also suggest that our commissioners schedule individual meetings with their Congressional delegation following
the statewide breakfast, or at other times convenient to your representatives. Registration materials for the breakfast 
will be sent out in early February, but please schedule your conference travel plans to accommodate the breakfast and
Capitol Hill visits. 

  

2012 Congressional Issues Proposal Form 
  
Name:      ____________________________            County: _______________ 

Issue:               ____________________________________________________ 

Description:     ____________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________ 

Has a bill been introduced in Congress?                            _____Yes       ____ No 

If yes, please provide bill number. Senate Bill No.: ____        House Bill No.:______ 

(Please answer the following questions) 

How does this issue impact counties? 

________________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________ 

Does this issue contain a cost to counties?                 _____Yes       ____ No 

Please explain: ___________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________ 

020712 BCC Meeting

190



4

________________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________ 

Does this issue impact county authority?                                 _____Yes       ____ No 

Please explain: ___________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________ 

  

 

 

Rebecca Troutman 
Intergovernmental Relations Director 
North Carolina Association of County Commissioners 
Phone (919) 715‐4360  |  Cell (919) 744‐4718 
www.ncacc.org 
www.welcometoyourcounty.org 

 

     

 
 

020712 BCC Meeting

191



020712 BCC Meeting

192



020712 BCC Meeting

193



 

 
 
 
 
 

SAVE THE DATE!!!! 
 
 

2012 Watauga County Economic Development Summit 
Blowing Rock Art and History Museum 

Downtown Blowing Rock 
March 7, 2012 

 
1:00 PM – 5:00 PM 

 
 

Agenda: 
 

Overview of the Watauga Economy 
Presentation of EDC’s Targeted Marketing Analysis 

Significant Drivers of Economic Growth 
Challenges and Opportunities Facing Local Organizations 

Where to Focus Economic Development Efforts 
Areas and Opportunities for Increased Cooperation 

 
Sponsored By 

 
BREMCO 

New River Light & Power 
Advantage West 

 
 

Plenty of Parking on Site 
 

Snow Date: March 21, 2012 
 

For additional information contact: 
 

 Watauga County Economic Development Office  
 

828-264-3082 
 
 
 

020712 BCC Meeting

194



AGENDA ITEM 12: 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Time has been reserved to allow citizen comment to address the Board for any area of interest or 
concern. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM 13: 

BREAK 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM 14: 

CLOSED SESSION 
 
Attorney/Client Matters, per G. S. 143-318.11(a)(3) 
 
 
 
 

020712 BCC Meeting

195


	Approval of the Minutes
	Approval of the February 7, 2012, Agenda
	Proposed Interlocal Agreement for Appalachian Regional Library
	Proposed Proclamation Designating February 2012 As Spay/Neuter Month
	Presentation of Smoky Mountain Center’s Annual Audited Financial Report
	Request to Appoint the Home & Community Care Block Grant Advisory Committee and Lead Agency
	Mowing Contract Bid Award Request
	P&I Matters - Proposed Language Access Plan for CDBG Scattered Site Housing Project 
	P&I Matters - Proposed 2012 Haz Mat Emerg Planning Grant Agreement
	P&I Matters - Brookshire Wetlands Proposal
	Tax Matters - Monthly Collections
	Tax Matters - Refunds & Releases
	Misc Admin Matters - Proposed Resolution Supporting Road Improvements and Upgrades to Roby Greene Road (SR 1331B)
	Misc Admin Matters - Proposed Resolution Establishing the Register of Deeds Salary
	Misc Admin Matters - Tentative Agenda for Annual Pre-Budget Retreat
	Misc Admin Matters - Incident Command System Classes
	Misc Admin Matters - Boards & Commissions
	Misc Admin Matters - Announcements
	Public Comment
	Break
	Closed Session
	02  MINUTES - SM.pdf
	Tourism Development Authority Recreation Trails Program Grant Application Endorsement Request
	Adjourn

	AGENDA 020712.pdf
	WATAUGA COUNTY ADMINISTRATION BUILDING
	COMMISSIONERS' BOARD ROOM




